100 ARTR O

TCC00010025

CELEBRATING
15YEARS OF
WAGING

PEACE

THE
CARTER

CENTER

1996-97

ANNUAL
REPORT




The Carter Center would like to thank Maloney Design Studio
and Wallace Graphics Inc. for their assistance in producing this report.
Copywriting by Beth Dawkins Bassett
with assistance from Pam Auchmutey




i ey iy ) oy = 4 ks J ‘R F-\
. MESSAGE FROM JiMMY CARTER :_.//f

CHAIR OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Jimmy and Rosalynn Carter talk with

f)l J” ll'”'ﬂ'll\'.L'T\ m 1\'1urm.|1'1u (h”'lll_{_{ f}lC

1997 election in Liberia.

Zf[@/ F i %%nﬂ e J 150 A
D72 07€ F e 7%&4 ﬂéj:"n | Biins s Ot 853
% e Lo ,4)7(,?/4. /{'4{:/ B i A Loy e ,
AAe % fj,n///(‘/w/{w /f»</>7’ /(f/éf ,
/2’4% Ser 2 Z;‘)/ /A’L‘c-’” /i%i/d/;/,:/f/ 44,4 |
e Sz )%'7;[ A A& eaZ”

i i i%&'(( % F P
7 0./5’ C’(’/{/ %‘W/ Z{ / A}d/{y%/ﬂ/,}{q

: (/4)0/ éﬁzz./y/% (’Z'w/ ; -
774 //("4':".4/3 %’dtﬁ/é///!/éﬂ){:‘/
/{A//-?édvz /{’?’ 74—0/ //”’4 i %(—‘r__ﬁ.
//(/(/ 2 L 6(/?4f'/én o ;77.4/ %";ﬂ&.

! ‘e ” s el
Btorgy 22 o Fe e e g

776’/ /KZ’/’L //—6' 3 ( 3:_4( 7£4A Af/’:ﬂ/l/ ,J-Q;/ P
/)‘;ff/y /4774 f/- L P o oz e

#//97/’/ (/ 22



.MESSAGE FROM JOHN HARDMAN

his summer, | traveled to

Ethiopia for discussions on

Carter Center programs. These
trips always bring home to me, in a deeply
personal way, the Center's impact on
individual lives. An airport immigration
officer thanked The Carter Center for
trying to bring an end to the Ethiopian/
Eritrean war in the late 1980s. A young
man in the Ministry of Health told me
that his mother, who lived in a rural
village many hours from
Addis Ababa, was free from
Guinea worm disease for the
first time in years. And an
extension agent in the
Ministry of Agriculture told
me that our Global 2000
program had given him hope
that Ethiopia can feed her
people.

Waging Peace. Fighting
Disease. Building Hope.
These are The Carter
Center'’s watchwords.

Since 1982, the Center
has focused outward on
improving the lives of
individuals. We do this by
resolving conflicts; distribut-
ing medicine and filters that
will prevent river blindness and Guinea
worm; monitoring elections; conducting
human rights workshops; helping govern-
ments implement national development
strategies; showing African farmers how to
produce more food; and reaching out to
those who suffer from mental illnesses or
economic hardship.

This year, we did all these things and
still managed ro find time to focus
inward—on the Center itself. We're proud
of what we have accomplished in our 15-
year history. But we’re also looking toward
the furure. So this year, we undertook a
strategic planning process to guide the
Center into the next century and beyond.
Together with President and Mrs. Carter,
we consulted with our Board of Trustees;
our many friends, partners, and supporters

around the world; our program directors
and staff; our colleagues at Emory Univer-
sity; and the many beneficiaries of our
programs.

We concluded that we would continue
to chart the Center’s future according to a
tundamental commitment to human
rights. We also agreed that:

1. There are several ingredients that

make our work uniquely effective. The
Center must continue to take on

John Hardman (right) discusses The Carter Center's work with former
U.S. Sen. Sam Nunn, who serves on the Center's Board of Trustees.

projects—even risky ones—that emphasize
action and results without duplicating
what others are doing well; form parmer-
ships across a broad spectrum of individuals
and organizations; and remain nonpartisan.

2. We will further focus our efforts on
peace, including the prevention and
resolution of conflict, and health, primarily
the control and eradication of disease.

3. We will further strengthen our
relationship with Emory University, which
provides the academic foundation for our
outreach programs.

4. The Center will build on established
relationships and form new ones with
eminent people who have significant
experience, interest, and commitment to
our programs. Although we recognize
President and Mrs. Carter’s leadership as

ExECUTIVE DIRECTOR
OF THE CARTER CENTER

unique and irreplaceable, building ties with
other global leaders will help ensure the
Center will still be going strong long after
the Carters retire (although we don't
expect that to happen anytime soon!).
Building and maintaining relationships
is key to our success, and our work would
not be possible without the help of
dedicated partners. In recent years, the
Center has received funding from nine of
the 10 largest grant-making foundations in
the country. Although
American foundations
provide funds that sustain our
programs, a significant
portion of our Support comes
from individuals, corpora-
tions, and development
assistance programs in the
United States and abroad. In
the past year, our direct mail
donor group, an important
source of unrestricted
financial support, has grown
to more than 200,000
individuals. More than 600
people have joined the new
Ambassadors Circle, a club

Biity Howarp

that recognizes and honors
those who give unrestricted
annual gifts of $1,000 to
$10,000. Still others have formed a
partnership with us through planned
giving—via wills, charitable trusts,
charitable gift annuiries, and similar
vehicles.

Together with our partners, The Carter
Center’s values, expertise, and hard work
have made a positive impact on hundreds
of thousands of lives for more than a
decade. Today and in the furure, this viral
work will continue.
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THE CARTER CENTER MISSION STATEMENT

The Carter Center, in partnership with Emory University, is guided by a
fundamental commitment to human rights and the alleviation of human
suffering; it seeks to prevent and resolve conflicts, enhance freedom and

democracy, and improve health.

While the program agenda may change, The Carter Center is guided by five

principles:

1. The Center emphasizes action and results. Based on careful research and
analysis, it is prepared to take timely action on important and pressing
issues.

2. The Center does not duplicate the effective efforts of others.

3. The Center addresses difficult problems and recognizes the possibility of

failure as an acceptable risk.

4. The Center is nonpartisan and acts as a neutral in dispute resolution

activities.

5. The Center believes that people can improve their lives when provided

with the necessary skills, knowledge, and access to resources.

The Carter Center collaborates with other organizations, public or private, in

carrying out its mission.




. ABOUT THE CARTER CENTER

The Carter Center’s lvan Allen 111 Pavilion includes offices, meeting rooms, and the Cecil B.
Day Chapel, which seats up to 450 people for conferences and other events.

What is The Carter Center’s mission?
Every day in countries all over the
world, people live under difficult, life-
threatening conditions caused by war,
disease, famine, and poverty. The Carter
Center strives to alleviate this suffering
through projects that prevent and resolve
conflicts, enhance freedom and democ-

racy, .ll‘h] llll|‘l'l‘\ < ilL':lill]

What principles guide the Center’s
W l'll'l\.‘

The Center is a nonprofit, nongov
ernmental organization (NGQO) founded
in 1982 by Jimmy and Rosalynn Carter
in partnership with Emory University

The Center:

B Emphasizes action and results. It
translates academic research and analysis
into programs that have improved
people’s lives in more than 65 countries.

W Avoids duplicating the efforts of other

N\ agencies or institutions.

M Addresses difficult problems and
accepts the possibility of failure.

W [s nonpartisan and acts as a neutral
third party to ]1("||‘ resolve Lll'%]mlus.

M Believes that people can improve their

lives when provided with the necessary

'nl( I”.\, |\'Ill )\\'|l'L]‘L'L‘. .Ind access [o resources.

Who directs the Center’s programs?
Programs are directed by resident
experts and fellows, some of whom teach
at Emory University. They design and
implement activities in cooperation with
President and Mrs. Carter, networks of
world leaders, other NGOs, and partners
in the United States and abroad
The Center is poverned by a Board of
Trustees, chaired by President Carter,
with Mrs. Carter as vice chair. (Members
are listed on page 36.) The Board of
Councilors provides support from
prominent I‘t‘L{n»Il.!| ‘lln| ¢ n'.ll IL'tht‘!‘ﬁ.

(Members are listed on page 38.)
What are the Center’s major initiatives!

HEALTH

B Leading a worldwide campaign that
has achieved more than 95 percent
eradication of Guinea worm disease in
Africa and parts of Asia. It will be only
the second disease after smallpox to be
eradicated.

B Fighring river blindness in Africa and
Latin America lhl'nlll;_’h a .u]i!l‘;ll coalition
to distribute medicine to control the
disease. Since 1996, Carter Center-

-lNHISIL'kI programs I]ii\'L‘ Pl‘(’\'lk]L‘kl I\L‘ill'l\' 9

million drug treatments to people in both
regions.

B Working to erase the stigma of mental
illness and to improve access to and
quality of care for the 50 million Ameri-
cans who experience mental disorders
every year

B Promoting preventive health care in
communities through a network of faich
groups in U.S. cities.

B [mproving health by helping farmers
in Africa double, triple, or quadruple
their yields of maize, wheat, and other
grains. For example, Ghana doubled
maize (corn) production from 1986-96,
while Sudan raised wheat production by
400 percent from |987-92.

PEACE

B Monitoring multiparty elections in
more than a dozen countries to promote
llt'llltiL‘r;\L'\.

M Secking peaceful solutions to civil
conflicts in places such as Sudan, Haiti,
Nicaragua, the Korean Peninsula, and
the Great Lakes region of Central Africa
B Promoting democracy and economic
cooperation in the Western Hemisphere
B Preventing human rights violations

worldwide.



B Strengthening human rights and
economic dc\'c!upmum in emerging
democracies.

W Helping inner-city families and children
with quality of life issues such as jobs, early
education and after-school programs, and
health care.

Where is the Center located?

The Carter Center is located in a 35-
acre park two miles east of downtown
Atlanta. Four interconnected pavilions
house offices for the former president and
first lady and most of the Center’s program
staff. The complex includes the nonde-
nominational Cecil B. Day Chapel and
other conference facilities.

The Jimmy Carter Library and Museum,
which adjoin the Center, are owned and
operated by the National Archives and
Records Administration of the federal
government. The Center and Library
facilities are known collectively as The
Carter Presidential Center.

How is the Center funded?

Private donations from individuals,
foundations, and corporations financed
construction of The Carter Center’s
facilities. These and other donors sup-
ported the 1996-97 budget with donations
of cash and materials totaling approxi-
mately $49 million. The Jimmy Carter
Library and Museum, also built with
private funds, were deeded to the federal
government after construction.

The Carter Center Inc. isa 501(c)(3)
charitable organization, and contributions

by U.S. citizens and companies are tax-
deductible as allowed by law. To make a
donation by cash or credit card, contact
the Office of Dcvchspmcm ar (404) 420-
5119.

How large is the Center’s staff?

In 1996-97, the Center employed 180
full- and part-time people, based primarily
in Atlanta. Field representatives are
stationed in 20 countries in Africa and
Latin America.

How do people become involved in the
Center’s work?

More than 100 undergraduate and
graduate students work with Center
programs for academic credit or pracrical
experience each year. Approximately 120
volunteers donate their time to the

Master
Gardener
Kinsaku
Nakane
designed The
Carter Center’s
popular
Japanese
Gardens, made
pnssihh’ b‘)’ a
aift from YKK.

The Carter Center
is located in a
35-acre park two
miles east of
downtown Atlanta.
The Center adjoins
The Jimmy Carter
Library and
Museum, which are
ouned and operated
by the U .S.
government.

Center. They work with Center programs,
assist with special events, and conduct a
limited number of private tours. For
volunteer information, call (404) 420-
5105. To learn more about internships,
call (404) 420-5151 or visit our Web sire.

Is the Center open to the public!

The Carter Center is open to the
public by business appointment or for
special events. Individuals or groups may
rent space for meetings, conferences,
dinners, receptions, concerts, and other
events. For availability and pricing, call
the Events Office at (404) 420-5112.

The Jimmy Carter Library is the
repository for Carter administration
records. The Museum of The Jimmy
Carter Library is open Monday through
Saturday, 9 a.m. to 4:45 p.m., and
Sunday, noon to 4:45 p.m. It features
exhibits on the American presidency, the
Carter administration, and more. Admis-
sion is $5 for adults, $4 for senior cirizens
55 and older, and free for children 16 and
under. For more information, call (404)
331-0296.

How can people learn more about the

Center’s work?

The Office of Public Information P

provides information about the Center’s  /
activities. For inquiries and a list of _.Jr
publications, call (404) 420-5117.
Information about the Center also is
available on the World Wide Web ar:
hetp:/fwww.emory.edu/CARTER _
CENTER.
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CAN AFRICA FEeD ITSELF?

“SG 2000 has demonstrated that high-yielding technologies
are available and adaptable to African conditions and has
gotten the attention of African leaders that agricultural
development is possible.”

ight atter night during 1984 and

1985, their images were beamed

to television screens around the
world. Hundreds of thousands of men,
women, and children in Ethiopia and

.\L'\'t’l'ill urln‘r ."‘\h’]k'ill‘a nations were starving

to death before our eyes.
Theirs '-L'Cmul to be a disaster so far-

reaching, so deep-rooted that it defied

remedy. Massive food shipments from more

prosperous nations pre \\'ILlL‘Ll rempaorary

relief, bur was there a long-term solution ro

hunger in Africa! Over and over the
question arose: Can Africa feed itself?

Today, the surprising answer may be
“yes." Hope comes
from Ethiopia, the
very country whose
starving children
rallied the world in
the mid-1980s. In
1993, farmers there
enjoyed a record
harvest and in 1996
exported maize to
droughr-stricken
I\'L'“\ll.

As a result of
}‘;lllllq‘l.l‘.\ SLICCESS, -”i{'
Washington Times
reported in August
1997, experts believe
“rhe same turnaround
" might be possible for
all of Africa” and
“predict that Africa is
on the brink of an
agricultural revolution
thai unlld solve th'

continent’s fox wl

—Ralph Cummings, senior economist,

U.S. Agency for International Development

problems within a decade.” The key to
Ethiopia’s agricultural boom was the work
of SG 2000, a collaborarive effort of The
Carter Center’s Global 2000 program and
rthe Sasakawa Africa Associarion (SAA)
of Japan. According to the Times, “After
lindividual] farmers were taught tech-

niques as simple as using fertilizer and

planting in rows, it took only two years for

them to produce a grain surplus.”

Spreading the “Green
Revolution”
In 1986, Ethiopia's famine prompred a

partnership among The Carter Center,

SAA, and Norman Borlaug, now Global
2000 senior consultant for agriculture and
SAA president. Dr. Borlaug won the
Nobel Peace Prize in 1970 for crearing the
“Green Revolution,” credited with saving
millions from starvation and ushering in
agriculrural self-sufficiency in much of
Asia and Latin America in the 1960s.
Dismayed by Africa's situation in the mid-
19805, Dr. Borlaug agreed to come out of
retirement and bring the Green Rev-
olution to the continent.

Agricultural failure in Africa, Dr.
Borlaug and others concluded, was due in
part to several prnl‘]rnh inherent in

traditional farming

methods. Many
farm families
cleared a small new
field every year or
two by buming

bushes and slashing

rees L :\HIL_'
pointed sticks, they
then dug holes
randomly about the
barren field and
planted seeds
without fertilizer.
Lacking the
renewing properties
of fertilizer, the soil
quickly became
unproductive, and

. the field, without

7 contours around

5 plants to hold the

: In|\.\ml. eT¢ n}u| and
kz was abandoned.

By the 1980s,
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“SG 2000 is unique in that it does not create a bureaucracy. When
farmers’ neighbors see increased crop yields, they also want to use our
techniques. So, friends teach friends the SG 2000 approach.”

—John Hardman, M.D., executive director, The Carter Center

African research centers knew abour
improved farming practices, but that
information was not reaching small-scale
farmers. SG 2000 set out to disseminate
information and institute change. It
assigned one technical advisor to work
with Ethiopia’s government through its
Ministry of Agriculture and with local
extension agents. These agents enlisted a
few farmers across the country who were
willing to use high-yield, insect- and
drought-resistant seeds and to employ
improved planting techniques on part of
their land. Farmers learned to use small
amounts of fertilizer and plant their crops
in rows to combat erosion.

“SG 2000 is unique in that it does not
create a bureaucracy,” explains John
Hardman, M.D., executive director of The
Carter Center. “When farmers’ neighbors
see increased crop yields, they also want to

use our techniques. So, friends teach
friends the SG 2000 approach.”

In 1993, Ethiopians harvested 5.5
million tons of grain—impressive, but still
below the yield needed to feed the
population. The next year, Jimmy Carter,
in an effort to widen use of SG 2000
cultivation methods, asked then Ethiopian
President Meles Zenawi to go with him
into the fields.

Because President Meles and President
Carter traveled in farm clothes and
without an entourage, the farmers didn’t
know they were speaking with a former
U.S. president and their own president
(who later became prime minister). “As
we traveled,” President Carter said,
“President Meles became increasingly
impressed with the farmers’ enthusiasm for
the new merhods and the high yields he
saw in the test plots. They typically

exceeded traditional production by 200 to
400 percent.”

The next day, President Meles
instructed his minister of agriculture to use
the new methods throughout the country.
In 1995, Ethiopian farmers produced a
record grain harvest of 9.7 million tons. By
the end of 1996, the country broke the
record with 11.7 million tons and in
January 1997 exported food for the first
time.

Today, more than 400,000 farmers in
Ethiopia are using SG 2000 methods, and
200,000 more are using them in 11 other
African nations. In each country, top
government officials are involved in the
program. SG 2000 offers support for five
years; each country then continues the
program independently.

Although Africa still lacks enough food
for every citizen, grain production across

Mexico more than 50 years ago.

in Africa.

Seven years later, his research team introduced a dwarf plant
that was more disease-resistant and greatly increased crop yields.
Today, farmers also use improved planting methods and better
varieties of rice, maize, sorghum, and many other staple crops.

Despite his success in Asia and Latin America with improved
seeds and planting methods, Dr. Borlaug was hesitant to accept an
invitation in 1986 to lead SG 2000 efforts in Africa. “I'm too
old,” said Dr. Borlaug, who was 73 at the time.

Fortunately, Dr, Borlaug relented. Under his guidance, SG ; \
2000 has helped farmers plant some 600,000 demonstration plots - d
Norman Borlaug and a young Ethiopian farmer listen to a

“What we have shown is that you can always at least double  discussion about SG 2000 agriculture methods.

crop yields, frequently triple them, and in some cases quadruple
them with the application of easy-to-use rechnology,” Dr. Borlaug
said. “Very simple steps can make a dramatic impact.” 4

SowING THE SEeDS OF PEACE

obel Peace Prize winner Norman Borlaug began to
g DEE

experiment with seeds to grow better varieties of wheat in

“B——

ROBERT GROSSMAN
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the continent is now rising 2 percent each
year. But daunring challenges remain.
Even with a food surplus, many Ethiopians
still go hunery. By 2050, Africa must
increase food production by 300 percent
overall to keep up with population growth,
according to the U.N. Food and
Agriculture Organization.

Facing Future Challenges

'he Ethiopian government and SG
2000 have begun to address some of the
major problems that prevent food from
reac llil]‘_: pex ‘E"II.': lack of facilities to store
crops, poor transportation to ship products
to market, and inadequare market systems
to promote rrade and provide loans to
farmers.

HT\‘TT!L’L‘. mn [‘.Il"l 1C lllill'. |\il\ ]‘Ck‘l‘l

problematic. For example, farmers have
traditionally left maize ears on stalks unril
needed, and insects and mold have ruined
as much as one-fifth of the crop. SG 2000
advises farmers on building grain-drying
storage structures. With crops stored safely
for several months, farmers can hold erain

beyond harvest time, when prices are

EH\\{'.\T. .Ilhl ‘-L'll It !JIL'I ara |]lﬂl\t‘f price.

Women play a major role in Afvican agriculture. Here, two women in Ethiopia
bag meal produced by grinding maize.

Political instability in Africa also

contributes ro food shortages, as leaders

withhold food from opposition groups. continent can lead to a paolitical solurion. economically, and socially,” he said.
However, Dr. Borlaug remains optimistic, “Agriculrural stability 15 the glue that “Africa is p.u\m] on the brink of prosperity.
believing that a Green Revolution on the brings people together politically, Agriculture is the key.” ®

MiLEsTONES IN ETHIOPIA

B 1984-85. Famine paralyzes Ethiopia. with farmers. Impressed with their results, he initiates
nationwide use of SG 2000 cultivation methods. The 1994
B 1986. The Carter Center and SAA form SG 2000 to harvest produced 5.4 million tons of grain.

address Africa’s agricultural problems.

B 1995. Ethiopian farmers harvest 9.7 million rons of

B 1993. SG 2000 hegins working with Ethiopia's grain—a record.
Ministry of Agriculture and local extension agents, who

\ teach farmers to use high-yielding seeds, small amounts of B 19986. Ethiopian farmers produce an unprecedented 11.7
fertilizer, and other simple methods to make their land million tons of grain. They export a surplus of one-half million
more productive. to | million tons of maize to neighboring Kenya to help relieve

a drought-induced food shortage. The surplus equals Ethiopia's

B 1994, President Meles joins President Carter to visit 1984-85 shortfall. ¢
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(CHALLENGE FOR THE AMERICAS:
MAKING DEMOCRACY WORK

“What happens to our Latin American neighbors happens to us.
In the post-Cold War world, the hemisphere’s economic security
is as important to America’s future as military security is.”

—from an Atlanta Journal-Constitution editorial, April 28, 1997

(4 n irresistible democraric ride has
swept this hemisphere in the 20
years since [Jimmy] Carter began

his presidency, preaching human rights,”

former U.S. House Speaker Jim Wright
wrote in the May 4, 1997, Fort Worth Star-

Telegram. “Today, every existing govern-

ment save that of Cuba was popularly

chosen in constitutional elections. The
challenge now is to show that democracy
works."

Mr. Wright wrote this column after
attending the April 1997 Carter Center
consultation “Agenda for the Americas for
the 21st Century,” hosted by former
Presidents Carter and Gerald Ford and the
Center’s Council of Freely Elected Heads

of Government. The meeting’s

THIE L LB

significance was clear from the list of 130
participants: current and former heads of
government, prime ministers, and other
national leaders from the Americas and
the Caribbean as well as the highest
ranking officials from the United Nations
and the Organization of American States.
Their candid discussion focused on several
common Western Hemisphere goals:
promoting a Free Trade Area of the
Americas (FTAA), ending illegal drug
trafficking, limiting arms sales, and
reinforcing, deepening, and extending
democracy and social justice.

The consultation sought to build on
and reinvigorate goals set at the first such
meeting at The Carter Center, held in
1986, and at the 1994 “Summir of the

Americas,” hosted by the United States.
One major accomplishment of the 1986
consultation was establishing the Council
of Freely Elected Heads of Government to
help reinforce democracy at critical
junctures. Since then, the Council has
monitored and mediated 17 elections in
10 countries in the Americas, supported
freer trade in the Western Hemisphere,
and worked to reduce debr and bring

peace to Central America.

Free Trade

At the “Summit of the Americas,”
Western leaders recommended extending
the North American Free Trade
Agreement (NAFTA) throughout the
hemisphere by implementing an FTAA by

Jimmy Carter and Gerald
Ford participate with
members of The Carter
Center's Council of Freely
Elected Heads :Jj-
Government at a press
conference during the
“Agenda for the Americes”
& consultation.
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“The Council’s recommendations come less than a week before President
Clinton is scheduled to make his first extended trip to Mexico, Costa Rica,
and Barbados. Administration officials ... privately voiced gratitude for
some of the ideas raised at the two-day conference in Atlanta.”

—The Miami Herald, April 30, 1997

2005. At the “Agenda for the Americas”
consultation, the Council reaffirmed
commitment to this goal. “The moral basis
ol ']lL’ new communiry of '}IL' .’\ll]L‘I'!L':i\ 1S
democracy,” Jamaican Prime Minister PJ.
Patrerson said on the Council’s behal.
“Freer trade will enhance ties between our
democratic nations.”

I ll'“‘llhl‘ht‘ri( [iﬁ]\l&' IS |‘{'Q€‘|l1|]1g
increasingly important. During the past
tive years, for example, U.S. trade exports
to Latin America have increased 15 times
faster than U.S. exports to Europe and

k'l!_[l\[ rimes fiihrl.‘l' lh;m Il'h IS¢ 1O J;I[ﬁ.‘ln.

“When the threat of decertification is
used as a lever to coerce agreement for a
particular aspect in the fight against
drugs, it is obvious the process does
more harm than good.”

—Jamaican Prime Minister P.J. Patterson

“Forty percent of U.S. exports now go to
[hemispheric] markers,” U.S. Vice
President Al Gore told consultation
participants. “Our future depends grearly
on seizing these opportuniries.”

Mexican President Ernesto Zedillo and
Dominican Republic President Leonel
Ferndndez also spoke in favor of an FTAA.

“Nothing is yet finally determined about
the next century. We must acknowledge
the fragility of achievements and the
extent of acute afflictions such as
poverty, violence, and moral decay, but |
am optimistic.”

—Mexican President Emesto Zedillo

“Free trade agreements throughour the
"\IIIL'I‘I(‘I\ are rranstforming our economies
and making us stronger competitors in the

world marketplace,” President Zedillo said.

lllegal Drug Trafficking

Consultation participants agreed that
drug trafficking thréatens the hemisphere
}‘\ creatng pe WETTY, tll\'l\h ms %t'l’\\'t't‘]]
narions, .I”\l crme. l \'Htl_’ St l]‘r‘]lL"r\ ‘“'hl
consumers equally contribute to the
problem.

The most controversial drug issue was
“certification.” Under this policy, the
United States imposes penalries against
countries with unsatisfactory records in
fighting drugs. Caribbean leaders called the
policy “arbitrary” and “paternalistic.”

Council members proposed several
alternarives to certificarion, including a
torum to devise a hemisphere-wide plan to

combat drug trafficking and implement

strategies for each country. U.S. House
Speaker Newt Gingrich (R-Ga.) voiced
support for this solution. “Lert us agree our
goal is to wipe out the drug dealers, o
wipe out the cartels, to save our children,
to protect our political structure, and to

work together,” he said.

Arms Restraint

Although Latin America spends
relatively less on defense than most other
regions, countries have cited lingering
border disputes as a reason for acquiring
sophisticated arms. Fearing an arms race,

“Our future is inextricably bound in the

Western Hemisphere, and there are

many good things we could do together.”
U.S. House Speaker Newt Gingrich

the Council proposed that these countries
adopt a two-year moratorium on weapons
pul't]'l:m'.\ and hcgin discussing a con-
ventional arms restraint agreement. Oscar
Arias, who is Council member, former
president of Costa Rica, and 1987 Naobel
Peace Prize laureate, backed this idea.
Mr. Arias then called on the United

States to leave in place restrictions on the

sale of high-tech planes to the region. He
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“For years, a small band of peace activists pushed the entirely sensible but
seemingly hopeless idea that the world showld refuse to sell arms to
dictatorships. Now it may be coming to pass.”
—from a June 20, 1997, New York Times editorial citing support for
such a ban by 15 current and former heads of state at the “Agenda for the
Americas for the 21st Century” consultation

also advocated developing a code of
conduct to prevent arms transters to
lllnlk‘[l)l'l. ratic, \]it;r.lh\l‘-i'ulcd. Or LerTorst
states as well as to nations LilsrL‘\]‘cCHu] of
human rights.

“I sincerely hope these security
suggestions will be taken to heart by
national and international leaders alike,”
he said.

Democracy and the
Social Agenda

To promote democracy and social
progress in the hemisphere, participants
recommended that democratic
governments adopt campaign finance
restrictions, curb corruption by advancing
anti-bribery resolutions, and encourage
freedom of the press.

Council members urged pursuing a
policy of engagement rather than isolation
with Cuba, the only nation in the
hemisphere not to have held competitive
elections. “Cuba should be invited to
participate in hemispheric events,
provided the government is prepared to
accept standards of human rights and
demaocracy,” the Council wrote in irs final

starement.

Vice President Al Gore was amang the 130 participants who attended the “Agenda for the
Americas” consultation. After the meeting, he briefed President Bill Clinton before the president’s
May 1997 wrip to Mexico, Central America, and the Caribbean.

After the Consultation

Sixteen Council presidents and prime
ministers attended the consultation, and
three others sent high-level representa-
tives. All signed the final statement that
recommended new appro. iches to 1I':txi&.‘.
drugs, arms control, and democracy. The
Council leaders pledged to use their
influence to try to persuade governments

consultarion. Countries should:

B Seck ro eliminate illegal drugs.
B Resolve remaining territorial dispures.
B Curb the purchase and sale of arms.

The Council of Freely Elected Heads of Government, established by The Carter
Center in 1986, agreed on several basic goals during the “Agenda for the Americas”

B Establish a Free Trade Area for the Americas by 2005.

B Extend the benefits of democracy to all nations of the Western Hemisphere. 4

to accept the recommendations.

In May 1997, President Carter and
Robert Pastor, director of The Carter
Center's Latin American and Caribbean
Program and executive secretary of the
Council, traveled to Washington, D.C.
They met with John Sweeney, president of
the AFL-CIO, and with Speaker Gingrich
to try to forge compromise language for
fast-track negotiating authority. They also
discussed rhe need for a multilateral
approach on drug issues with Speaker
Gingrich and Indiana Rep. Lee Hamilron,
ranking Demaocrat on the House
International Relations Committee. Some
progress was made in both areas.

In addition, all Council members
sought support for the arms moratorium,
and 27 incumbent presidents and prime
ministers have endorsed the proposal. Dr.
Pastor noted, “This was one consultation
where the recommendations did not

gather dust on a bookshelf.” #




.THE YEAR IN REVIEW

t several inner-ciry sites across

Atlanta, more children than

Cver are receving earl v
education to help prepare them for
effective adulthood. These pre-
kindergartners are the beneficiaries of
efforts launched during 1996, the first
year of The Atlanta Project’s (TAP)
three-year Phase 11, which focuses on
improving the lives of children and
families.

TAP Phase 11 is part of an initiative
begun in 1992 by The Carter Center to
help Atlanta residents address problems
assoctated with urban poverty. Other

THE ATLANTA PROJECT:
HELPING CHILDREN AND PRESERVING FAMILIES

“The Atlanta Project was created not to be another
; service provider but to bring existing groups together to

address complex problems.”

—former U.S. President Jimmy Carter

Phase I programs seek to increase the
percentage of high school students who
‘_fr}ltillﬂ[\‘ on nme, immunize more
children against preventable diseases,
and make available job training and
placement for welfare recipients.

TAP now operates out of four
neighborhood Cluster Centers and the
Carter Collaboration Center, which is
located in Atlanta City Hall East and
provides space for community meetings,
technology resources, and dara and
policy analysis.

Coalitions and partnerships continue

to be important to TAD, bringing

pre-K classes in the Atlanta area.

Early education provides children with the skills they need to hecome happy, productive
adults. Under TAP's guidance, child care providers secured state funds to expand or add

together human and organizational
resources of residents and community

(24 L ‘llP\‘ service PT\ I\'lt.]L'f\. government
agencies, corporations, and academic
institutions, As in previous TADP
endeavors, inner-city residents are key ro
creating strategies and identifying goals
to improve the quality of family and
community life in their neighborhoads.

Helping Young Children
Although infants are born with great

potential, fulfilling it is predicared in

large measure on the physical, social,

emotional, and cognitive building blocks
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put in place early in life. If children do not
have good beginnings, they may find it
difficult, if not impossible, to be effective
members of an ever more complex society.

TAP residents ranked establishing more
pre-kindergarten (pre-K) programs high on
their list of priorities. Examining
population data, TAP found the figures
bore out residents” concern. Of approx-
imately 10,000 4-year-olds living in the
TAP area, only half were enrolled in pre-K
and Head Start programs.

Under TAP's guidance and with input
from Georgia's Office of School Readiness,
20 child care providers applied for state
funding to start or add 24 pre-K classes for
1997-98. As a result, applications were
approved to add 548 4-year-olds to
Georgia's pre-K program in Atlanta. Of
those, 140 children from seven TAP sites
enrolled in September 1997.

“When we visited TAP pre-K sites, we
saw tremendous energy and brightness in
the children,” said Doug Greenwell,
program director for TAF. “They’re ecstatic
about being in these settings.”

TAP hopes 1o secure funding for more
pre-K classes next year.

After-School Programs for
Middle School Students

Today, many teens lack supervision from
3-8 p.m., since most parents, grandparents,
and primary caregivers work outside the
home. Experts believe that the high
number of youths invalved in violent,
criminal, and sexual activity could be
reduced if young people participated in safe,
creative after-school programs. Experts also
agree that kids engaged and motivared in
early adolescence are more likely to
graduate from high school on time.

Consequently, the After-Three Program,
initiated by the Commissioner of the
Georgia Department of Children and Youth
Services, the chief judge of Fulton County
Juvenile Court, and an Atlanta Board of
Education member, selected six middle
schools for pilot after-school programs. A
coalition of 37 government agencies asked
TAP to coordinate efforts to enhance
existing programs at four of the schools and
to create new programs for the others.

oz

Camp Creek M-iddlc School studen:

——

ts play a round of baeket&dl as m::mb.crs of the “After 3

Club,” a program for youngsters who otherwise would be alome while their pavents are at

work.

Approximately 450 students are enrolled
in the After-Three Program, compared to
250 last year.

“This is an exciting moment for me,”
said Eugene Walker, commissioner of the
Georgia Department of Juvenile Justice
and a coalition member. “It shows the
value and importance of collaboration.”

More important, the program means
that students like eighth-grader Chris
Hartfield have more adult supervision.

“I enjoy school,” says Chris, who used
to spend two hours alone before his
parents came home. “This will give me
more time to work on my studies."”

Making Welfare Work

Extraordinary effort is needed ro see
that welfare recipients, most of whom
now are required by law to obrain jobs by
2001, receive training and joh
placement. Statistics show that the
number of welfare recipients may be
especially high in TAP communities,
where some 40 percent of the population
live below poverty level.

To prepare people for job placement,
TAP initiated rhe Welfare-to-Work
Project. So far, TAP has formalized
commitments with 45 public- and
private-sector employers to provide job
openings and support services such as

training, mentoring, and transportation.

“It couldn’t be a better time for
businesses to participate in the transition
process to get people off welfare,” said Joe
Schneider, vice president of human
resources for Unired Parcel Service
(UPS), based in Atlanta. “Many
businesses such as UPS need reliable,
commirted employees.”

During 1997, TAP hosted quarterly
meetings on Georgia’s behalf to
encourage private companies to
participate; provide an overview of state
programs, services, and incentives; report
results of state placement efforts;
highlight employer best practices; and
present local experts on welfare-reform
issues. It also led several employer and
resident focus groups to seek ways to
improve stare employment efforts. TAP
staff visited participating employers to
promote good will and learn more about
programs and services for welfare
recipients.

“l appreciate TAP's efforts to
assemble the business community,” said
Michael Thurmond, director of the
Georgia Division of Family and Children
Services. “It is imperative that the public
and private sectors cooperate and
actively participate in making Georgia's

Welfare-to-Work effort a success.” €

Katuayw Ko
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Human
RIGHTS

“Democracy,
development,

and respect fl T
human rights

and fundamental
freedoms are
interdependent

and mutually
reinforcing.”
—from the Vienna

Declaration and

Programme of

Action adopted by
U.N. member

states in 1993

hrough its human

richts initiatives, The

Carter Center has
become a voice for the

voiceless. The Center assists

victims of human rights abuse

and governments ﬂl'll,'_[L'lil‘lg_[
to build institutions o
protect those rights. lts
International Human Rights
Council (IHRC), whose
members are activists and
scholars, promotes increased
collaboration among nongov-
ernmental organizations
(NGOs) and intergovern-
mental groups to strengthen
worldwide implementation of
human rights standards.

In 1996-97, the Center
undertook several projects
including creating workshops
to help Ethiopian educators

teach human rights prin-

_ g b g
Walter Echo-Hawk of the Native American Rights Fund discusses
the use of U.N. human rights bodies and procedures by American
Indians, Alaska Natives, and Native Hawaiians at a 1996 meeting
of the IHRC at The Carter Center.

-—

ciples, strengthening U.N. research cases of human
rights abuse for action by The

Carter Center. 4

human rights bodies, and

training law students to

HumAN RiGHTS LESSONS
FOR THE

E thiopian kindergartners each select a
rock from the schoolyard, study it, and
place it in a common pile. Later in the day,

the youngsters revisit the pile and try to

identify their own rocks.

CLASSROOM

Training College, and the other was for
school teachers, teacher-trainers, and
curriculum developers in Addis Ababa,
Ethiopia’s capital. The workshops stressed

using games, songs, and storytelling in

“Always, they cannot find their personal
rocks because the rocks are far more similar
than they are different. It's a simple way to
teach children the concept of equality,”
explains Ozong Agborsangaya, a Carter
Center human rights specialist who has
trained primary and secondary school
educators in Ethiopia how to teach human
r]ﬁhl.\_

The Carter Center led two \\'nl'k.\hnps
there in December 1996. One session was

for instructors at Bahir Dar Teachers

primary school and skits in grades seven
through 12. These interactive teaching
methods show children the many ways
Illll'ﬂi]” ['l;_[hl'.\ [Il;l\' E‘L‘ l’llil“‘L‘ll, \lL'nj{'\], or
protec ted.

“The education system is the best formal
way to teach citizens about their rights and
about values such as diversity and respect
for others,” said Ms. Agborsangaya, who
has developed similar workshops for
teachers in Liberia. ®
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THEe INTERNATIONAL HUMAN RiGHTS CounciL

Jimmy Carter, Council Chair

Rosalynn Carter, Former First Lady

Philip Alston, UN. Commirtee on Economic
and Social Rights; Australia

Hanan Ashrawi, Palestinian National Authority;
Palestine

Florence Butegwa, Women in Law and Develoy
ment; Zimbabwi

Patricia Derian, Former Assistant Secretary for
Human Rights; United Stares

Clarence Dias, International Center for Law and
Dewve ;w;-r\u‘\li, Unired States and India

Walter Echo-Hawk, Native American Rights

?‘-Ht I: 1 ‘.IL'\_-i ofate

}'L'li('L' Craer, I‘I\ ob Blaustein Institure for the
Advancement of Human Rights; United States

Hina Jilani, AGHS Legal Aid; Pakistan

Wei Jingsheng, Human Rights and Democracy
Activist; People’s Republic of China

Elaine Jones, NAACP Legal Defense and
Educational Fund; United States

Sia Kaxinawa, Alliance of the Peoples of the
Forest; Brazil

Teddy Kollek, Former Mayor of Jerusalem: Israel

Ewa Letwoska, First Ombudsperson in

Eastern Europe; Poland

Gay McDougall, International Human Rights

Law Group; United Stares

Bacre Waly N'Diaye, U.N. Special
Rapporteur for Extrajudicial, Summary,
or Arbitrary Executions; Senegal

Jacquelin Pitanguy, Cidanania, Estudo,
Pesquisa, Informacao e Ac¢ao; Brazil

Michael Posner, Lawyers Committee for
Human Rights; United Stares

Nigel Rodley, U.N. Special Rapporteur on
I oure; [ nite | 1\ ngwrn

Mohamed Sahnoun, Special Representativ
to the UN. Secretary-General; Algeria

Dorothy Thomas, Former Director, Women's
Rights Project, Human Rights Warch;
United States

Andrew Whitley, U.N. Conference on Tradc
and Development; Switzerland

Laurie Wiseberg, Human Rights Internet;
Canada

Mona Zulficar, New Civic Forum; Egypt

Human
RiGHTS

Mohamed Sahnoun
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CoNFLICT
REesoLuTION

“Nongovernmental
organizations
(NGOs) such as ...
The Carter Center
are active in develop-
mental, humanitar-
ian, and human rig
issues. As ‘wr
organizations,’ they
have the advantage of
building trust and
confidence between
two sides and using
their resources to
work toward negotia-
tion. With no strate-
gic or political motiva-
tions, NGOs have
greater flexibility ...
in responding to the
needs of people.”
—INN Mem

mar Rupesinghe

very year, millions of

people suffer the

consequences of war.
The Conflict RL'.\HlLlriun
Program marshals the exper-

tise of peacemakers worldwide

to help ease their suffering.
Through its International
Negotiation Nerwork (INN),
the Program monitors major
armed conflicts and, when
invited, provides a neutral,
unofficial forum for negotia-

rons.

Guided by Jimmy Carter,
the INN includes world
leaders and experts who have
addressed major conflicts in
Sudan, Liberia, Haiti, North
Korea, the Baltics, the Great
Lakes region in Central Africa,
and other areas. INN members
work on both a private and
public level, quietly mediating
some conflicts while bringing
visibility to others.

One public example is

Liberia, which held its first

democratic election in July
1997, closing a long chapter of
civil war. The Carter Center
has worked to advance peace
there since 1991, when all
sides in the conflict invited
President Carter to assist with
negotiations. The Center
continued to play a role in the
peace process and ll\'l|\\| |;ly
the groundwork for the
national election (see page
20). INN member Marie
Angélique Savané took part in

THE INTERNATIONAL NEGOTIATION NETWORK

Jimmy Carter, INN Chair

Oscar Arias Sanchez, Former President of
Costa Rica and Nobel Laureate (1987)

Eileen Babbitt, [nstitute of Peace

Tahseen Basheer, Former Egyptian Ambassa-
dor to the Unired Stares

Javier Pérez de Cuéllar, Former U.N.
Secretary-General

Hans Dietrich Genscher, Former Vice
Chancellor, Germany

Tommy Koh, Former Singaporean
Ambassador to the United States

Christopher Mitchell, George Mason
University

Olusegun Obasanjo, Former President of
Nigeria (currently imprisoned in Nigeria)

Lisbet Palme, Swedish Committee for
UNICEF

Robert Pastor, The Carter Center

Shridath Ramphal, Former Secretary-
General, Commonwealrh of Nations

Barnett Rubin, Council on Foreign Relations

Kumar Rupesinghe, International Alert

Harold Saunders, Former U.S. Assistant
Secretary of State

Marie Angélique Savané, Former Director,
Africa Division, U.N. Population Fund

Desmond Tutu, All Africa Conference of
Churches and Nobel Laureate (1984)

Brian Urquhart, Former UN. Undersecretary-
General for Peacekeeping

William Ury, Harvard Law School

Cyrus Vance, Former U.S. Secretary of State

Vamlk Volkan, University of Virginia

Peter Wallensteen, Uppsala University

Elie Wiesel, Boston University and Nobel
Laureate (1986)

Andrew Young, Former U.S. Ambassador to the
United Nations

[. William Zartman, Johns Hopkins University
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the election observation
mission led by President
Carter in July 1997, Ms.
ind fellow INN

members Desmond Turu,

Savane

Lisber Palme, and Christo
pher Mitchell have partici
pate [ in previous L.arter
Center interventions and
( ‘IL'-—:|!{,|E‘HH'— im | It‘l'l'lt
Sudan

Jimmy and Rosalynn
Carrer rraveled to East Africa
in April 1997 to evaluate
peace efforts in Sudan, where
in estimated 1.5 million
people have died in a civil
war since 1983.

['he Carters met with
Sudanese government and
opposition leaders, urging
them to resume negotiations.
The trip contributed to the
renewal of talks some months
later in Nairobi, Kenya. To
date, however, fighting

continues.

The Korean Peninsula
[n June 1994, the United

— \ International

WORLD

CONFLICT

States ]‘l-'|‘\"L'.l sanctons
against North Korea for
suspec |L‘|I N ]=.',|| .I:'\‘H ma
ment violations, and tensions
f;::u_‘['wlc'n‘.l o the brink of
war. Kim Il aung, then
president of North Korea,
invited the Carters for
private talks. President
Carter negoriated an agree
ment with North Korea to
nucle

freeze Its I program,

resume t ![i» ‘.\\E}i '!H : nite i
States, and replace existing
iHIL]\'.Ll' power rag WIET:\" \\'Hh
safer ones. In August 1997
construction began on these
tacilities

In the wake of serious
!\‘\1\] ‘-ll“l{_l!j\'\ Carter Center
staff visited North Korea in
June 1996 to help link
agricultural scientists there
with experts in other parts of
the world. Currently, plans
are being developed o
introduce Quality Protein
Maize, a highly nutririous
corn strain used by the

1
AETICLHIUre pr

NLer s
enter |

LA

in Ghana

epotiatton Netwaork

published its 1995-96
State of World Conflict
Report, pre

maps

f I |
wemographucs

mformation on the 25

locations where 30 majo

rmed CONJUcts occurred

in 1995

ang Statstic

u

The Great Lakes
Region of
Central Africa

['he Carter Cenrer
remains in close contact with
leaders of Africa’s Great
Lakes countries—Burundi,

Rwanda, Tanzania, Uganda,

ind Zaire—in the

the region’s political crisis

Since 1994, Rwanda and
Burundi have been plagued

by armed conflicts,

massacre

ind the migration of some 1.7

million Rwandan refugees to
Zaire and Tanzania

Some progress was made
during frank discussions with
Great Lakes heads of state at
Carter Center-organized
summits in Cairo (1995) and
[unis (1996). However, the
situation has grown more
difficult with deteriorating
security in Burundi and
increasing border tensions
hetween Rwanda and Zaire
Carrer Center officials and

rhers l'll pe to restart

CoONFLICT
RESOLUTION

and environmental
issues to ensure
peace. It’s the follow-
up to mediating a
peace agreement and
holding honest elec-
tions that is difficult.”
—former U.S.

President Jim
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ELECTION
MONITORING

“The elections brought
great relief to everyone
as the war came to an
end. Families once

more can reunite and

build new lives
—Gertrude Koroma,
a Liberian who
works in The Carter
Center's office in
Monrovia, the

nation’s capital

Eighty-five percent of registered voters turned out for Liberia’s first democractic election in July 1997
Many waited in line for howrs—sometimes all night—to vote.

n democracies, people

make their will known at

the ballot box. Based on
the principle that free and fair
elections are vital to self-
governance, 1he Carter
Center monitors voting in
emerging democracies in
Africa, Asia, the Middle East,
and Latin America.

Important to these efforts

has been the pioneering work
of the Center’s Council of
Freely Elected Heads of
Government, formed in 1986
and comprised of 30 current
and former heads of state from
throughout the Americas. In
1996-97, Council members
observed the I‘t‘k'r«ldt'l\l ial
election in Nicaragua and
Congressional mid-term
elections in Mexico (see page

,a S
23). Carter Center delegations

also monitored the first
credible narional election in
Liberia and \'ll[.]}_[t‘ elections
in two provinces of the

People’s Republic of China.

Election Brings Peace
to Liberia

The first free election in
Liberia’s history, held in July
1997, resulted from a peace
accord signed in 1996 under
the auspices of the Economic
Community of West African
States. [t marked the end of a
devastating civil war that

began in 1989.

Several days before the July

19 election, 40 Center
delegates were deployed to 10
of Liberia’s 13 counties to
observe the voting process. In
all, 500 international observ-

€rs Were present on L'IL'L'[ ion

day, when an astounding 83
percent of registered voters
cast ballots for 90 members of
Parliament and overwhelm-
ingly chose Charles Taylor as
president.

“In the face of tremendous
challenges, the Liberian
people have conducted a
peaceful and orderly election,”
the Carter Center delegation
said in a post-election
statement. “We hope the
spirit of election day will
guide Liberians in the days
.lI‘tl‘.lL{."

Liberia continues to seek
the Center's advice on
economic recovery :H’I\I ||H\\'
to advance human rights,
especially through the nation’s
education system and newly
formed Human Rights

Commission,

ORY STEMM
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Village Elections

At the ']l\Il.lf!"!w-'TlE'lt vil
People’s Republic of China,
arter Center sent a
CVEN-person
lelegation to observe village

» Hebei and Fujian Twenty years ago, China'

o learn that the Chinese

‘in!t'\l' n

villages we visited,

voted by secrer ballot for a The Ministry of Civil Affairs

1 11 1 1 1

hoice of candidates. In thost Nnow organizes elecrions 1
lages, it was clear that ibout 1 million villages, whe

leade o S . o= Jv 900 l

€aders were maore responsive .im roximmartely YUd mi

to the |‘vu]'|\‘ than in those

international where they did not have a population—Ilive

1

tions, the Carter Center

late Premier Deng Xiapong

"Most people are surprised began a series of economic ment officials in Beijing to
reforms that increased rhe liscuss ways of improving th
wtronomy ol .1“.1_3 S H:‘l L‘ng{\]l-\. process “"El

sands of provinces. In 1987, the ireas of future cooperation
‘”l l'*mll--\mli.-w; l¢ L.ongress betrween the (€ |E|[\\,1r|.i
Center Fellow Robert Pastor, passed a law establishing the China. Carter staff plan to
March 1997 framework for holding direct return for further discussions in
delegation. “In most of the elections by secret ballot with 1998. &
farmers ITIH[II['il_' candidares for Oftice

1on

i'i‘lli‘lk'- 15 percent of ( hina's
secret ballot.” After observing the elec

delegation mer with povern

possible

we into the village, and it looked like many | had known as a |

lozen earthen hur

Voring AMONG RUINS

arter Center election observer John Schelp of the National Institute of Environmental
Health Sciences was deployed to Liberia’s Bomi County, where some of the most vicious

bartles were fought during seven years of civil war. Here’s part of what he saw:

*eace Corps volun

1a s nrst free election

Now, still an hour

| by torest. In front of

ELECTION
MONITORING

the officials who
supervised them,’

said Anne Thurston,

one of the Carter

[ :.L'””[L'T! LiL'iL'l':L“t‘.\"”

—The Christian
Science Monitor,
March 26, 1997
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GLoBAL
DEVELOPMENT

“[Guyana’s] National
Development Strateg
should be required
reading for owr politi-
cians, businessmen,
trade unionists, and
academics. Containing
useful and interesting
ideas and discussions
on every aspect of the
economy and its
processes, it cannot
help but raise the level
of public debate.”
—from an editorial in
The Stabroek News,
a Guyanese
newspaper,

arch 6, 199

n 1997, Guyana unveiled

its first National l)c\'ciu['

ment Strategy (NDS)
The innovative plan was
created with help from The
Carter Center’s Global
Development Initiative
(GDI).

The NDS includes unprec-
edented input from individu
als, citizens groups, govern-
ment il]\(l nNnong ‘\'L'I‘l!llll'ln‘ll
experts, and donor agencies. It
examines various development
options and establishes
policies and sets priorities that
balance economic growth
with environmental
sustainability. The plan also
addresses health « dare, educa-
tion, gender equity, and other
social issues.

“The drafting process was

one of the most participatory

exercises anywhere, involving
all sectors of soc iL‘T.\““ said
Gordon Srtreeb, associate
executive x,ilI\'t.'ll'l' of TEIL‘
Carter Center's Prevention and
Resolution of Conflict Pro-
grams. “If this plan can be
implemented successfully, it
could become the model in the
foreign aid community for
supporting priorities set by a
country to achieve sustainable
development.”

GDI helps countries
stimulate economic growth
through more effective use of
domestic and international
resources, including foreign aid.
In Guyana, GDI served as a
neutral third party, providing
technical assistance, facilitating
discussion, and promoting
collaboration with the donor

community.

In 1990, the Center began
work in Guyana to help prepare
for the 1992 national election.

A Carter Center team led by

Jimmy Carter observed that

election. The following year,
the Center was invited to
advise on development issues.

The NDS, which awaits
formal approval by Parliament,
already has contributed to
policy decisions in Guyana. To
date, recommendations
implemented include privatiz-
ing the Guyana Electricity
Corporation, eliminating the
monopoly on processed gold
sales, increasing timber
royalties, and developing a
clear mining investment code.

In summer 1997, GDI was
making plans to offer similar
assistance to Mali, Mozam-
bique, and Albania. ¢

| n 1996, The Carter Center and its
partners presented a document to
Guyana's prime minister to help formulate
national policy on land use. Compiled by
The Carter Center, the Government of
Guyana, the University of Guyana, the
Guyana Environmental Monitoring and
Conservation Organization, and the World
Resources Institute, the document resulted
from a year of development and public
consultations across the country. It marks a
critical step in establishing guidelines to

I‘L‘.\Ul\‘L' !.‘Ilui use L'UH”[L LS, CX l1';|]ll:|lL‘

PromoTtING RespoNsiBLE LAND UsE

Strategy. ¢

lI]llI[iPlL’ lll[]tl LSES, Zl”kl cencourage |(|L.|1
participation in land use decisions.

The document reflects a wide range of
Guyanese views on land use, particularly with
respect to the hinterland, an undeveloped,
unpopulated region comprising aboutr 80
percent of the country and inhabited by
Amerindians. The hinterland retains 99
percent of its equatorial rainforest and is rich
in bauxire, diamonds, and gold. Most of the
recommendations in the land-use document

are included in the National Development
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he Latin American
ind Caribbean
Program (LACP) and

its Council of [:l‘t‘\'l\.' Elected

Heads of Government continue

to bolster new democracies in
the Western Hemisphere

Since 1986, the LACP and
the Council, a group of 30
current and former heads of
state from the Western Hemi
sphere, have monitored and
mediated 17 elections in 10
counrries. 7[‘ill'\ ‘ll‘\l ) il.l\ | =
wdvised nations on how to
deepen democracy and deal
with economic issues such as
debut, trade, illegal drug traffick
ing, and arms sales. In April
1997, the Council hosted the
“Agenda for the Americas for
the 21st Century,” a major

consultation thar focused on

these issues (see page 10).

Nicaragua’s Peaceful
Recount

In October 1996, 76
percent of Nicaragua's eligible
voters marked ballots for
president, vice president, and
other officials. Forty-seven
Carter Center delegares and
1,600 representatives o the
international community
( 11‘\1,'1‘\ L'.l !llr vore.

| \‘!l'!j_lit* CONK !\Mt ! ”IL'
election was open and honest,
.|[|‘{ |‘:'U‘~|\ft'nl|.l] C .|lhihl e
Arnoldo Aleman claimed an
early victory. But his closest
challenger, former Sandinista
President Daniel Orrega,
questioned the vore count’s
accuracy. As a result of an
agreement mediated by Jimmy
Carter and the Council, an
extensive but peaceful partial

recount began. The 19-day

Process reve l;l,'-l some
INACCUracics, %"ill I‘H;\ WETr(
not large enough to change
L‘EL'\ fion I'L‘.\Hll\

In 1990, The Council
observed the presidential
election that marked the first
peaceful transfer of power in
Nicaragua's history. Since
then, the Center has worked
with officials there to control
hyperinflation and resolve
property disputes through the

COUrt system.

Democracy Deepens
in Mexico

In recent years, Mexico has
Hl.h!t' IHIPUI'!.!H[ "II'T\'L‘.\ f\‘\\\ll'.l
more open, competitive
elections. At the invitation of
President Emesto Zedillo and
leaders of major political

parties, a Carter Center

Jimmy Carter,
S i
James Baker, and
Oscar Arias
examine presidential
ballots during the

O)ctober 1996

9
>

AMERICA
AND THE
CARIBBEAN

opportunity.

—]Juan Brenes, 22,

a tirst-time

voter in Nicaragua's

October 1996

P residential
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CARIBBEAN

“As th

calmly for hours, first

) "Ll'tiilt‘t!

under a steaming
tropical sun and then
in drenching afternoon
showers, voters
seemed fully aware of
the significance of the
occasion. This will be
the first time in
Nicaragua’s 172
history as an indepen-
dent country that a
democratically elected
civilian president has
handed over power to
another.”

—The New YorkTimes,
Oct. 21, 1996

delegation observed Mexico's
Congressional mid-term and
local elections in July 1997.
Citizens turned out in record
numbers: Participation rates
approached 75 percent in
Mexico City and 60 percent
nationwide.

The elections resulted in a
major shift of power away from
the ruling Insritutional

Revolutionary Party (PRI). For

example, Mexico City elected
its first mayor from an
opposition party. The PRI also
lost its majority in Mexico’s
lower house, the Chamber of

Deputies.

Colombian Prisoners
Freed

In June 1997, a guerrilla
group, Revolutionary Armed
Forces of Colombia ( FARC),
freed 70 government soldiers
held captive for nearly a year.
During months of negotia-
tions, both the Colombian
government and FARC
consulted frequently with The
Carter Center.

LACP Direcror Robert
Pastor was invited by both
sides to be part of a group that
witnessed the transfer of
captives to freedom. He also
met with Colombia's president
}lnl.l Prl:nt’ minister }]]1&] ]]-ld
extensive conversations with
FARC's commander.

“All expressed appreciation

for The Carter Center’s help in

THe CounciL oF FreeLy ELECTED
Heaps oF GOVERNMENT

Jimmy Carter, Council Chair

George Price, Council Vice Chair

Ernesto Pérez Balladares, President of Panama
Rafael Caldera, President of Venezuela
Fernando Henrique Cardoso, President of Brazil
Leonel Fernindez Reyna, President of the

Dominican Republic
Carlos Sadl Menem, President of Argentina
P.J. Patterson, Prime Minister of Jamaica
A.N.R. Robinson, President of Trinidad and Tobago
Julio Marid Sanguinetti, President of Uruguay
Riul Alfonsin, Former President of Argentina
Nicholds Ardito-Barletta, Former President of Panama
Oscar Arias Sanchez, Former President of Costa Rica
Jean-Bertrand Aristide, Former President of Haiti
Patricio Aylwin Azécar, Former President of Chile
Fernando Belatiinde Terry, Former President of Peru
Belisario Betancur, Former President of Colombia
Rodrigo Carazo, Former President of Costa Rica
Vinicio Cerezo, Former President of Guatemala
Joseph Clark, Former Prime Minister of Canada
John Compton, Former Prime Minister of St. Lucia
Gerald Ford, Former President of the United States
Osvaldo Hurtado, Former President of Ecuador
Luis Alberto Lacalle, Former President of Uruguay
Alfonso Lopez Michelsen, Former President of Colombia
Carlos Andrés Pérez, Former President of Venezuela
Gonzalo Sinchez de Lozada, Former President of Bolivia
Erskine Sandiford, Former Prime Minister of Barbados
Edward Seaga, Former Prime Minister of Jamaica
Pierre Trudeau, Former Prime Minister of Canada

negotiating the soldiers’ talks that could end South

release and hoped that the America’s longest-running

Center would facilitate future

guerrilla war,” Dr. Pastor said. ¢
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he Atlanta Project

(TAP) is a work in

progress. Founded by
['he Carter Center in 1992,
[AP helps Atlanta's neediest
itizens revitalize their

neighborhoods. 1t builds

partnerships involving residents,

service providers, corporations,
local and state government

rencles, universires, |H-‘

others to develop new models
for community building

From 1992-97. TAP
residents launched more than

400 projects. One program, the

Children’s Health Initiative,
frew more than 7,000
olunteers who identified

nearly 16,000 presc hool

chudren needing vaccinarions
hild ’

or lacking up-to-darte record

As a result, a multicounty

mputer data base now rracks

health and immunizat

| 1
records or metro-Atianta

children for the first time. In
iddition, every child born in
e

America’s Youth Passport,

record-keeping booklet for

IZia NOW receives

parents on safety, ild care

ind development, immuniza

tions, and other health topic
In 1996, TAP entered a

s\\nn\] i"i‘L‘th rocusing on

children and families. By fall

1997, TAP residents had found

ways Lo Increase pre kinder

garten and after-school

I}n \Il‘lf\" 1 area

Also, TAP is working with

state and private-sectorn
employers to help welfart

recipients leave | ublic

Istance 1n L""‘I”“L} ‘\\Ir]! new

state and federal welfare-t

WY 1' ::'-.'.'-\nr page 13). &

¢

uring the last four

.it'\ ‘l\lk'\ maost

central cities have lost
substantial numbers of residents

to suburhbs, where three-fourths

rnon growthn |Je-.u\||=|v'-!

Today, central cities are home
to a disg rtionate sha )
rons | predomi

nantly people of color, who ar
isolated from the suburbs and
have limited economic oppor
runiries

'he America Project is a

forum for sharing lessons and

approaches learned by The
Atlanta Project (TAP) and
highlighting successful urban
initiarives throughout the

country. It brings together

|1."£‘h']" rom community

rganizations and representa
tives of diverse Zroups con-

cerned abour urban decline.

In 1996 \)-:". the Il[\'|l,‘L|
“l"”l!\\‘h_'d‘ four conterences
[he three part “Secking
Solutions” series covered
strategies, policies, and
CONCErnSs « Il“[' inating
Community-Building

" in Ocrober 199¢

Inittatives” in February 1997,

ind “Oovernance in Commu

T
nity Building” in May 1997

)

The January 1997 conference

“Linked Future: Building
Metropolitan Communitie
stressed that central citie
|[|\_i \lli"l”!‘ﬁll\:l‘-[ W lli'.

ther t 11 ,.11-”1:;53

shared economic, political
.

and physical environments
The America Project

continued to share TAP's

important lessons with

national and international

audiences by |\||1\||-|li|'\;:
“Learning Together: Reflec
tions on The Atlanta

]‘|~'|lll " It also hosted
Japanese corporate delegates,
representatives of the

E uropean Lommission,

ewly elected South African
fncials, .\':‘i '-5||.|= nes an |
munity leaders fron
|‘ 1
C1 the nired Srate
[ll “JT ’;H \_\]1‘ .\\‘ \|:1‘

tional Film Festival gave rhe
Project a Silver Award for its
film “Rebuilding America
Communirties.” The 30

minute film highlights

York’s South Bronx, and

( \‘lH !“';;_!‘ C lif [M‘; FIEH‘ will
1ir on 56 public relevision
stations nationwide over the

next two years. 4

THE ATLANTA
PRrROJECT

“The Atlanta Project

Jane Smith,
former director,

\tlanta Project

THE
AMERICA
ProuJEcT

lome of us can solve
i S
urban propems
uUniess we ...

Jenz el s
ACKNOWLE ¢ that

Our Tutures are

1 Glover
Slackwell,
Senior vice
esident,
Rockefeller

Foundation
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AGRICULTURE

“A high percentage of
the people in [Africal
depend on agriculture
for their livelihood.
Improvements [in
agricultural yields]
can unlock the door to
social and economic
improvement. Indeed,

- - | -y + " r
APTICULTUTE MUSI

—from a 1997
report by a team

C ‘Illll':lvlt'lu'd [o
assess agriculture in

sub-Saharan Africa

he 1996 U.N. World

Food Summit reported

that 800 million
people, mostly in developing
countries, still suffer from
chronic malnutrition. No-
where is this problem more
critical than in sub-Saharan
Africa, comprising 49 coun-
tries whose populations are
likcl\,‘ to double over the next
25 years.

In 1986, The Carter

Center’s Global 2000 program
and the Sasakawa Africa
Association launched SG 2000
to address malnutrition
through improved farming
methods.

While SG 2000 does not
claim to be the sole determin-
ing factor influencing national
food production, statistics from
some countries in which it has
worked for the past decade

show significant progress:

B Sudan’s irrigated wheat
production rose by 400
percent from 1987-92 despite
a civil war.

B Ghana doubled rain-fed
maize (corn) production from
1986-96.

B Northern Nigeria's maize
production rose 50 percent
from 1993-96.

B Ethiopia’s cereal produc-
tion rose 100 percent from
1992-96 (see page 7). @

e

Corn Yields in Five SG 2000 Countries
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n 1997, the World Health

Organization (WHQO)

declared Pakistan free of
Giuinea worm disease (dracun
culiasis). The first country te
eliminate the disease through
an organized program,
Pakistan launched eradication
efforts in 1986, the year a
worldwide coalition led by
The Carter Center’s Global
2000 program was formed t
intensity efforts to wipe our
the disease.

At that time, Guinea worm
cases in India, Pakistan,
Yemen, and 16 African
nations totaled approximartely
3.2 million. At the end of
1996, just over 150,000 cases
remained. WHOQO certification
is imminent in India, where
the last known indigenous
case occurred in 1996.
“Pakistan’s certification is a
milestone in our effort,” said
former President Jimmy

Carter. “Only one disease,

smallpox, has been eradicated
With more than a 95 percent
reduction rate worldwide,
Guinea worm is now poised to
become the second.”

T'he “fiery serpent”™—a
biblical reference ro the
disease—has existed for
centuries. People become
infected by drinking stagnant
water contaminated with tiny
water fleas carrying Guinea
worm larvae. Inside the body,
the larvae mature and grow as
le ng as 3 feet. After one vear,
threadlike worms emerge slowly
through blisters on the skin.
['hese worms are so painful that
adults cannort farm and children
cannot JI’I&‘IN' S( ]nn!l for \l'\\‘l'.ll
t\L‘\‘L\. Ns\ cure exists, |"l|l liw
\Il.\L';hc can be t'lih,hL.Ht'\l
through health education and
'\H'IIPIL' prevention Illt'lllt »\I\.

In late 1996, the DuPont
Company and Precision Fabrics
Group Inc. agreed ro donate

another 300,000 square yards of

nylon filter cloth developed o
strain Guinea worm larvae from
drinking water. Nylon filters are
the uhlwl,L'|1c;i[n‘\l way to
make drinking water safe
Boiling infected water, drilling
|u ll‘t'||nlL' \\k“”.\‘ .Illkl rreatng
water sources with Abate, a
nontoxic larvicide donated by
American Home Products Corp
(formerly American Cyanamid),
also eliminate larvae

[he \|I\L‘.|>c |LI.\ Prov ('\l MoOst
intractable in Sudan, where civil
war hinders detecting cases and
teaching prevenrion methods. A
four-month cease-fire brokered
by President Carter in 1995
.1”1 l\\\‘\l |lL'.il{h Wi ll‘l\a‘l\ access to
remote areas in southern Sudan.
By the end of June 1995, they
had found more than 2,000
infected villages. Although
hostilities resumed, eradication
efforts continue. During 1996,
workers distribured more than
617,000 cloth filters.

Dr. Mamadou
Bathily (right)
and Aaron Zec
(second from
right) , a

Lec ‘Hll: .!‘
consultant with
Global 2000 in
Mali, examine a
filter cloth that

needs replacimg

GuUINEA
WoRrM
ERADICATION

chair,

DuPont Company
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RiVER
BLINDNESS

Ever since the
campaign against
[river blindness]
began, people are
wdually coming back
to cultivate and even
settle around the
fertile hills of Pe
village.”
—Luizi Onen
during a training
session in Uganda
for community-
based distributors of
Mectizan®, the drug
used to treat river

blindness

magine a disease that causes

blindness and forces people

to leave their homes. The
Carter Center has been acrive in
the international campaign to
control such a \Al'l:ﬁ".lht' since
1988. In 1996, The Center
stepped up its efforts by
absorbing the River Blindness
Foundation to creare the Global
2000 River Blindness Program
(GRBP), modeled on the
Center's successful fight against
Guinea worm disease.

GRBP strives to control river
blindness (onchocerciasis)
worldwide. Ninety-nine percent
of all cases occur in Africa; the
rest are found in Yemen and six
countries in Latin America. The
World Health Organization
(WHO) estimates that 18
million people are infected and
120 million people are ar risk. In
some communities, 15 percent of
the population is blind and up to
40 percent of adults visually im-
paired.

River blindness spreads when
parasites enter the body through
bites from blackflies that breed
in fast-flowing water. Victims
experience constant itching—
similar to poison ivy—skin
rashes, eyesight damage, and
often blindness. Many are
unable to farm, work, or
concentrate in school. The
disease often forces farmers to
abandon fertile “bottom land”
near rivers and streams.

“River blindness causes the
social and economic fabric of

"

communites to ll]]['i\\'L‘I ‘\Lll\l

Donald Hopkins, M.D., associate
executive director of The Carter
Center's health programs.

“."‘\L{l'l(ljl[lﬂ".il PI'UL![K non Lll’ﬂ]‘.\,

children must care for their sick
parents, and adc !lch‘n[\.
fearing they may become blind
and concerned about social
stigma associated with signs of
the disease, leave home.”

To combat river blindness,
GRBP works to expand free
distribution of the drug
Mectizan®, One oral treatment
a year prevents the disease.
Working with ministries of
health and other nongovern-
mental organizations, GRBP
trains health workers and
residents in affected areas to set
up ongoing distribution
programs.

.\h‘rn l\ & Cn). IHL‘. \.it:\‘l.']t !]TL'J
Mectizan® and in 1997 cele-
brated the 10th anniversary of
its decision to donate tablets.
Merck provides the drug to

programs approved through the

Mectizan® Expert Committee,
an independent Merck-funded
group. The Committee is based
at The Task Force for Child
Survival and Development, a
partner of The Carter Center.

Since 1996, GRBP-assisted
programs have provided nearly
9 million trearments in Africa
and Latin America. Approx-
imately 5.1 treatments were
provided in 1997—34 percent
more than the year before.

An ambitious effort began in
1997 when The Carter Center,
Merck, and nine other
organizations joined WHO and
the World Bank to control river
blindness in Africa by 2007.
“This initiative is important
because it affirms the world’s
intention to help Africa get rid
of this disease,” Dr. ]”lﬂ[‘l(inh
said. &

N T "
IR e

¥3 ke

This statue, located on Carter Center grounds, shows a child leading
a blind man with a stick. The man is a victim of river blindness,
which infects some 18 million people in Africa and Latin America.
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'he Interfaith Health
Program (IHP) works
on the premise that

mobilized members of faith

groups can make a significant

lifference in the health of

their communities

OINTS TO TwWoO Statt

ties: 1) Two-thirds of all
leaths before age 65 ar
reventab ( e th

‘\w Ices such as sm -{-.Hl"‘ I

Irinking excessively. 2)
Approximately 75 million
people attend a place of
\\A=|\h|[" at k‘.ww ONCE a wee i\
in the United States, consti
ruting a vast }uilll.uz resource
In 1Ls Capacity as a

clearinghouse and catalyst

IHP helps faith groups

establish more effective
community outreach pro
grams. [ts Web site, IHP
NET.org provides a forum for
dialogue and sharing informa
tion such as I rofiles of
effective faith-health pro
grams and links to free on
line i.n'.\|[lw resources

Nationally, IHP conduct
training for religious leaders
medical professionals, public
health workers, c ngregat
members, and communiry
groups. Locally, it advises
faith groups on such issues as
training members to serve as
Il.ii‘"'ﬂ‘ }"\'[\\l‘l'll |}|\'H
congregations and health care
SErvices

In 1997, IHP began a

series of Youth Empowerment

Workshops at local inner-ciry
churches. These Programs
teach youths ages 5-18 how
to choose healthy lifestyles,
make sound decisions, and
cope w r!_il PEET Pressur [he y
also enhance parents’
understanding of youth issues

uch as self-esteem

Having parents and
iren atre “!"n W ‘:
SNOY gether strengther

ommunication between
IHP

assistant director. “We've also

them,” said Fred Smirh

identified several youth
leaders who will learn
organization and public
speaking techniques so they
can lead similar programs in

their neighborhoods.”

very day in the United
H"‘[‘Eli,“\T!IL‘\\ill]\.ill'“r
of a classroom full of

( {H]\IH'H |"L’L~-IHL' vichim to

homicide. In most cases, the

ause of dearh is gunfire. The

v develog

oLlutions

\ I-|!'\l‘u € againslt

SLOP gun

those ages 19 and younger
NEQ pursues its goals

using a public health strategy

that incluc

rrerns

B Identifying p:
common to their deaths and
prevention measures that
\“Hli‘ Hl|\'3’”|i"! [ill"\k‘ i'.l[
terns

B Sharing results with
local officials, agencies, and

| olicy-makers

Working with Hughes
Spalding Children's Hospital,
of Medi

for Disease

Morehouse School

cine, the 'Lenters

Control and Prevention, and
the Rollins School of Publ
it | ry Universit
) supports three non
stration sites in Albuquerque

Santa Fe, N.M.; Compton
Long Beach, Calif.: and
Atlanta. NEO launched its
Atlanta program in April
1997, while the New Mexic:
site completed its first case
study in August 1997, The
demonstration projects servi
as models for other communi
anes w L‘-EHHLZ to start similar
programs.

“The number of children
injured or killed by guns every
gedy,” said

Wallace Woodard, NEO

VEAar Is a TLIH\'Ei.\] Cr

-.!II'\'\ LOT.
must become the LOp priority

in stopping this epidemic

\'I_\ Ys strategy %\Hj'\'-- on

dara gathered by Community

Action Teams (CATS) at eac
lemonstration site. CATs
include 10 to 20 local citizens
uch as clergy, public healtl

H»f !_m enforcement |‘|..r.
sionals, teachers, business
{LHHII‘T‘\. and those affected by

CAT

firearm violence

members are rrai
public health research metl
} |\ o .--||UI Information
Ii OUl ZFUn-re f.s!\ 1 L]n .IEIL- Ol
youths in their communities
“Armed with statistics,
officials will have a berrer
chance of developing and

implementing prevention

strategies i I}n Ir Comimeuni

“Cirtizen involvement

INTERFAITH
HeaLtH

rson,
director, Interfaith

Health Program

Nort EvEN
ONE

“Of the 2,000 ann-

OCCi

p Y PN oY
J countries,

fourths were in the

United States. The
Cause m maost cases
oun

The /
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,j/_f:

MENTAL
HeaLTH

”(_quf?u”_.‘. in devel-
oped and developing
countries alike,
mental illness and
health-damaging
behaviors exact a
tremendous toll in
ffering.
This is evident in the

distress and despair of

uals and the
nguish of their
families and in the
social and economic
costs due to lost
productivity and
increased use of
medical and welfare
,\:\‘T"('ILL‘\L“
—Rosalynn Carter,
chair, Mental

ealth Task Force

n 1995, a landmark report

released by Harvard Uni-

versity a\h\llg.l' SL'I}UUI
concluded that improvements
in physical health worldwide
far surpassed those in mental
health. Although the burden of
illness from psychiatric and
behavioral disorders is enor-
mous, it remains grossly
underestimated by public
health statistics.

The Carter Center is sharing
the report’s findings by building
coalitions among international
organizations interested in
mental health issues. For
example, former First Lady
Rosalynn Carter chaired two
regional meetings of the
International Committee of
Women Leaders for World
Mental Health. The Commit-

tee includes r l\,‘;tlly, heads of

state, and first ladies who work to
improve mental health condi-
tions worldwide.

Commirtee members from the
Americas attended the 1996
meeting, convened in Washing-
ton, D.C., by the Center, the
World Federation for Mental
| lt‘.lhll. I])l‘ Wi rl'lll ]'{L‘;ili'l
Organization, and the Pan
American Health Organization.
Women leaders from across
Europe gathered in Helsinki,
Finland, for the 1997 meeting,
SPons red ]\\‘ IhL' ( :L‘ﬂl&'l', the
European Regional Council of
the World Federation for Mental
Health, and the Finnish Associa-
tion for Mental Healrh. Partici-
pants at both meetings signed a
statement reflecting their
commitment to support and
implement local initiatives when
they returned home.

Healthy Employees,
Healthy Companies

In November 1996, during
the 12th Annual Rosalynn
Carter Symposium on Mental
Health Policy, leaders from the
U.S. business community joined
national mental health leaders
to discuss ways to improve
mental health care services and
benefits for employees. One
participant from BellSouth
Corp. offered an example of
what a company can do to
improve mental health coverage
for employees. His company
sponsored a toll-free “Depression
Hot Line” that workers could
call anytime for a month.

“The feedback helped
employees recognize if they were
dealing with just a case of the
blues or a more serious level of

depression,” said Terry

Force, chaired by Mrs. Carter.

EpucaTiING THE PuBLIC

N\unl;d illness continues to be one of

the most serious, unrecognized, under-
reported health problems in the United
States. To help educate people about these
issues, the Mental Health Program established
the Rosalynn Carter Fellowships in Mental
Health Journalism. Part of a national effort to
reduce stigma and discrimination against
people with mental illness, the fellowships
seek to enhance accurate reporting.

In September 1997, five fellows each
received a $10,000 award to study a mental
health issue for one year guided by a member
of the Center's Fellowship Advisory Board.
Fellows also interact with Mental Health
Program staff and the Mental Health Task

writing.”

them. It's a win-win situation.” #

ABoutr MEeNTAL ILLNESS

One fellow, Joel Kaplan, is leading a
team of 15 graduate student reporters as
they investigate delivery of mental health
services in Onondaga County, New York. Dr.
Kaplan teaches at Syracuse University, where
he chairs the newspaper department.

“My advisor, Otto Wahl, wrote a book
called Media Madness, which deals with
media portrayal of mental illness,” Dr.
Kaplan explained. “His expertise will be very
useful when my students begin discussing

ethical implications of the stories they'll be

Dr. Wahl, a psychology professor at
George Mason University, added, “The

fellows learn from us, and we learn from

oy
o
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McDevitt, who leads
BellSouth’s employee assis-
rance team. “It’s the type of
program that helps keep sick
days to a minimum and raises
productivity and morale.”

One month earlier, Mrs.
Carter hosted a statewide
forum to ]u-i;\ Georgia families
wercome obstacles to mental
health care and to release
results of a survey indicating
that nine out of 10 Georgians
believe most mental illnesses
can |‘«‘ lrc.ﬂ('\; \tll.'kk’“lrt_!”\-

“This survey makes it clear
that Georgians' artitudes
toward mental illness are
changing,” said John Gates,
director of the Mental Health
Program. “People are increas-
ingly aware that mental illness
touches many of us in one way
or another and that proper
treatment can lead to a
desirable outcome.”

The Mental Health

Program received two awards
for its work in 1996-97.
“Coping With the Stigma of
Mental [llness,” a video

featuring actor Rod Steiger
and author Kathy Cronkite
and narrated by actress Joanne
Woaodward, received one of

the four 1« P awards gIven

Joel Kaplan,
shown with Mrs.
Carter, 1s one of
the first five

|
Jouwrnalism

annually by Worldfest, a
North American international
film festival. Also, the Mental
Health Association of Georgia
honored the Program with its
President’s Award for efforts
“to make the public more
aware of mental health

issues.” @

Rosalynn Carter, Task Forc
Jane Delgado, Nationa

The Mental Health Task Force

develops initiatives to reduce stigma and discrimination. Members include:

Leon Eisenberg, Harvard Mex

¢ Chair

Coalition of 1 lispanic Health and Human Services Organizations

Jack Gordon, Hospice Foundation of America
Leslie Scallet, The Lewin Group

B. Franklin Skinner, BellSouth Telecommunications Inc

[ Richard Surles, Merit Behavioral Care Corporation

Ex Officio Members

Thomas Bryant, Non-Profit Management Associates Inc.

Kathryn Cade, Managing Director, Global Assets, Bank of Boston
Jetfrey Houpt, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine

The Mental Health Task Force

identifies major mental health issues, convenes meetings, and

lical School, Department of Social Medicine

, : .
v. | consider this

] L1
L problem

problem for every
state, society, and
ual.”
—Antonina

Lucinschi, wife of

the president,
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Donors to The
Carter Center

The Carter Center appreciates the
support of its many donors.
Although we are able to list only
those gifts that fotaled $1,000 or
mare during the fiscal year, we
are grateful for each gift, in
whatever amount, which helps to
support the work of The Carter
Center. Every effort has been
made fo assure accuracy. Should
there be any omission, we
apologize and ask that it be
brought to our attention.

Donors with cumulative
lifetime giving of $1 million
or more

AFLAC Japan

American Home Products
Corporation

BellSouth Corporation

Mr. Arthur M. Blank

Callaway Foundation

Carnegie Corporation of New
York

The Annie E. Casey Foundation

The Coca-Cola Company

Cox Interests

Mr. Michael G. DeGroote

Mrs. Dominique de Menil

The Delta Air Lines Foundation

E.l. du Pont de Nemours &
Company

The Ford Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Christopher B.
Hemmeter

The William and Flora Hewlett
Foundation

The Home Depot

IBM Corporation

Government of Japan

The Robert Wood Johnson
Foundation

The Thomas M. Kirbo and Irene
B. Kirbo Charitable Trust

Mrs. Joan B. Kroc

John D. and Catherine T.
MacArthur Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Henry K.
McConnon

Merck & Company

Mr. and Mrs. John J. Moores Sr.

The Charles Stewart Mott
Foundation

Government of The Netherlands

The Nippon Foundation

Government of Norway

Precision Fabrics Group

River Blindness Foundation

The Rockefeller Foundation

Government of Saudi Arabia

Walter H. and Phyllis J. Shorenstein
Foundation

Mrs. Deen Day Smith

Mr. and Mrs. Theodore R. Stanley

The Starr Foundation

Swedish International Development
Authority

Government of The United Arab
Emirates

U.S. Agency for Infernational
Development

The UPS Foundation

Joseph B. Whitehead Foundation

Robert W. Woodruff Foundation

YKK Corporation

Donors who have provided
for support in their estate
and financial planning

Anonymous

Mr. and Mrs. Holyoke P. Adams

Mr. and Mrs. D.C. Anderson Jr.

The Rev. Dr. Forrest Andrew and
Virginia Carhartt

Ms. Martha H. Beach

Mr. Robert F. Bigham

Ms. Amy R. Boscov

Jimmy and Rosalynn Carter

Mr. and Mrs. Donald B. Chalker

Dr. Jessalyne L. Charles

Charles and Lois Clark

Mr. Mark B. Cohen and Ms. Shelia
M. Fyfe

Ms. Margaret S. Crawford

Mr. William B. Crowley

Ms. Ann B. Currie

Dr. and Mrs. Paul Cutler

Mr. James F. Dalton

Ms. Mary de Vos

Mr. Michael R. Edmonds

Mr. William D. Elfrink

Mr. Kurt E. Findeisen

Guy M. Formichella

Mr. and Mrs. Forrest W. George

Mr. Harland Gibson

Mrs. Leanore Goodenow

Ms. Kay T. Hamner

Mr. David H. Harris

Mr. Hubert L. Harris

Mrs. Joan E. Hayes

Mr. Leon A. Hermeling

Bob and Nan Jackson

Ms. Susan Johnson

Lee and Harold Kapelovitz

Mrs. Charlotte Kimelman

The Hon. Henry L. Kimelman

Ms. Jo Anne Kirkman

Mrs. Sylvia S. Kirkman

The Hon. and Mrs. Philip M.
Klutznick

Mr. Elmer C. Kreisel Jr.

Ms. Katharine P. Lanctot

Mr. Earl A. Lash

Mr. Albert Leyva

Ms. Mary E. Lord

Ms. Alice F. Mason

Mrs. Camille E. McKee

The Rev. L. Katherine Moore

Mr. and Mrs. John ). Moores Sr.

Mrs. Muriel M. Mullenbach

Mr. Lee A. Nascimento

Mes. linda Nascimento

Dr. and Mrs. Daniel E. Nathan

Mr. and Mrs. Bruce Lindsley
Newman

Mr. Ralph H. Nicolson

John and Elizabeth Ogletree

Mr. Randy G. Paul

John and Betty Pope

Mrs. Melba Rice

Mr. Cecil L. Russell

James and Ann Sallen

Russell G. and Mary A. Sarner

Ms. Vikki A. Schick

Ms. Marjorie F. Shipe

Ms. Ruth Singleterry

Ms. Dorcas Smith

Ms. Beverly M. Stoy

Mr. and Mrs. Joseph |. Subers

Ms. Anne G.B. Thomas

Mr. lLew R. Wasserman

Estate of Thomas Watson Jr.

Mr. Sam A. Way

Mr. Nathaniel Welch

Donors during 1996-97
$ 100,000 or more

Anonymous

AFLAC Japan

AT&T Foundation

Mr. Arthur M. Blank

Mr. and Mrs. Howard S. Brembeck
Carnegie Corporation of New York
The Annie E. Casey Foundation
The Coca-Cola Foundation

Cox Interests

The Delta Air Lines Foundation
Government of Denmark

The Ford Foundation

Georgia Power Foundation

Great Pacific Foundation

William Randolph Hearst
Foundation

Conrad N. Hilton Foundation

Holiday Hospitality

The Home Depot

[TOCHU Corporation

The Robert Wood Johnson
Foundation

W. Alton Jones Foundation

Kuwait Fund for Arab Economic
Development

LG Group

John D. and Catherine T. MacArthur
Foundation

The J. Willard Marriott Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Henry K. McConnen

Mr. and Mrs. John J. Moores Sr.

NationsBank South

Government of The Netherlands

The Nippon Foundation

Publix Super Markets Charities

The O. Wayne Rollins Foundation

Government of Saudi Arabia

Walter H. and Phyllis J. Shorenstein
Foundation

M. and Mrs. Theodore R. Stanley

The Starr Foundation

The UPS Foundation

U.S. Agency for International
Development

loseph B. Whitehead Foundation

$25,000 1o $99,999

AGCO Corporation

Mr. and Mrs. D.C. Anderson Jr.

Archer Daniels Midland Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Michael A. Ashcroft

BCI Corporation

BellSouth Corporation

Mr. Gary Carlston and Ms. Nancy
Carlston

Mr. and Mrs. Denald B. Chalker

The Coca-Cola Company

CocaCola Enterprises

Delta Air Lines

Government of Germany

Mr. Richard J. Hawkins and
Dr. Nona F. Niland

The William and Flora Hewlett
Foundation

Estate of Mathilda Hoffman

Mr. and Mrs. James C. Holcomb Jr.

Holder Corporation

Inter-American Development Bank

International Foundation for Election
Systems
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Janssen Pharmaceutica

Government of Japan

Mr. Ronald V. Joyce

Kansas City Southern Industries

WK. Kellogg Foundation

Livingston Foundation

Robert R. McCormick Tribune
Foundation

Mrs. Kenneth F. Montgomery

Mutual of America

Estate of Mina |. Pennick

Plizer

Reebok International

The Rockefeller Foundation

M. Hany M. Salaam

SmithKline Beecham Corporation

Estate of Leona Blanche Snyder

Southern Company

Sprint Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. John P. Squires

Mr. Arthur Temple Il

Time Warner

Turner Broadcasting System

United Parcel Service

The Wachovia Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. John F. Wieland

The World Bank

$5,000 10 $24,999

AFC Enterprises
Sen. Hajime Akiyama
Anheuser-Busch Companies
Ms. Karen L. Ansett
The Atlanta Foundation
Atlantic Richfield Company
Bankers Trust Company Foundation
Mr. Shepard Barbash and
Mes. Vicki Ragan
Judge Carl Baudenbacher and
Dr. Doris Baudenbacher
Mr. Arthur M. Blank
Mr. Richard C. Blum and the
Hon. Dianne Feinstein
Botwinick-Wolfensohn Foundation
The Bullitt Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Stimson Bullitt
James Earl Carter Jr. Tribute
Commission
Ms. Thelma |. Chapman
Dr. Jessalyne L. Charles
Chevron U.S.A. Products Company
Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-Day
Saints Foundation
Mr. Gustavo Cisneros
Computer Associates International
The Conboy Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Lodwrick M. Cook
Mrs. Harold D. Craig

Daniel Living Trust
Dr. Leland W. Doan
Ms, Janice Dorizensky
Douglas Charitable Foundation
Equifax
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Felder
The First Union Foundation
Dr. Robert A. Fish
Ford Motor Company
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick K. Gale
Gannett Foundation
Margaret E. Haas Fund
Mr. William T. Harper
Ms. Ellen W. Hartman
The Hearst Corporation
M:r. Leon A. Hermeling
M:r. and Mrs. Philip J. Hickey Jr.
Mr. Robert M. Holder Jr.
Mr. Oliver J. Hubbard
Hughes Foundation
Ms. Jo Anne Kirkman
Mrs, Sylvia S. Kirkman
Mr. and Mrs. Wyck A. Knox Jr.
The Kroger Company
The Lauder Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Arden O. lea
Eli Lilly and Company Foundation
Ms. Vera G. List
The IWH Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Edwin Lynch
Dr. and Mrs, Steven Lynch
Mrs. Kathleen Mannozzi
Mr. and Mrs. Richard D.
McFarland
Mr. and Mrs. Frank B. McGowan
Mr. Donald C. Meyers
Mr. and Mrs. George P. Mitchell
Ms. Mary Tyler Moore and
Dr. Robert Levine
Morgan Stanley & Company
Mr. and Mrs. Arnold Mullen
National Service Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Lee Newberg
Mr. and Mrs. Leon Novak
M:s. Barbara Oftinger
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Peaden
Mr. and Mrs, John M. Pope

Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Rearden Jr.

Mr. James D. Robinson |l

Mr. and Mrs. Felix A. Robyns

Mr. and Mrs. Gary W. Rollins

Mr. Cecil L. Russell

H.J. Russell & Company

Mrs. Helen L. Samson

Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Schless

Mr. and Mrs. J. Albert Schultz

The William B. & Sonia Schwartz
Fund

Scientific-Atlanta

Scoffish Rite Children’s Medical
Center
Mr. and Mrs. Allen H. Seckinger
Siemens Energy & Automation
The Simmons Family Foundation
The Hon. Paul Simon
M:r. James D. Sinegal
Dr. John E. Skandalakis
Mr. Robert E. Spellious
Ms. Elizabeth Steele
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur C. Stewart
The Surdna Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Ralph E. Tarnasky
Violy, Byorum & Partners
The Hon. Paul A. Volcker
Mrs. Helen E. Warmer
Wheat Ridge Ministries
White Consulting Group
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Wilson
Dr. Joseph N. Wilson and
Dr. Selma Wilson
YKK Corporation of America
Mr. Mortimer B. Zuckerman

$1,000 10 $4,999

Anonymous (3)
Mr. and Mrs. Roger K. Allen
Ms. Diane |. Amos
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Dwayne O. Andreas
Mr. Joseph Andres
Mr. Otis H. Andrews
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Angell
ARCO Foundation
Mr. Frederick H. Arend
Arnhold Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. W.F. Askins
Mr. Gerald J. Austin
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Averill
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Ayres Il
Mr. and Mrs. Jack L. Bacon
Ms. Mary Baird
Mr. and Mrs. Gordon H. Bald
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory Ballentine
Mr. Leo T. Barber Jr.
Mr. W. Frank Barron Jr.
Mr. William C. Bartholomay
Mr. Steve Baughman and

Ms. Rebecca R. McGowan
Ms. Roxanne W. Beardsley
Mr. Chris Behle
Dr. and Mrs. Seth Bekoe
The Hon. Griffin B. Bell
Dr. and Mrs. Robert A. Berenson
Mr. and Mrs. Don Berg
Mr. James David Beverly
Mr. Frederick B. Bierer
Mr. and Mrs. Waddell A. Biggart Il

Mr. Robert F. Bigham
Dr. and Mrs. Robert D. Billinger Jr.
Mr. John H. Blacklidge and
Dr. Virginia Y. Blacklidge
The Bong Scon Christian Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Boone Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Louie W. Booth
Ms. Amy R. Boscov
Mr. Tim M. Boudreau
Mr. Fred M. Bowser
M:r. and Mrs. Roger Boyle
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Bradley
Ms. Carole Ann Branson
Ms. Nancy Britz
Mr. Charles Kent Brodie
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Brown
Mr. Harold Brown
Mr. and Mrs. J. Chris Brown
Mr. John Bryan
Ms. Margaret Buck
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Buffett
Ms. Joan Bugbee
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Bugg Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Buie
Mr. and Mrs. Landon V. Butler
Dr. and Mrs. Paul R. Butler
M:r. and Mrs. Jeremich Callaghan
Mr. Timothy J. Cambias
The Walter G. Canipe Foundation
Mr. Bertram W. Carp
Ms. Susan A. Carr
The Carter Foundation for
Governmental Affairs
Mr. Kermon A. Carter
Mr. Charles W. Carson
Ms. Ruth Cekosky
The Chatlos Foundation
Ms. Jean G. Childers
Dr. and Mrs. Paul M. Christensen
Ms. Georgia A. Christopher
Mr. David R. Clark
The Hon. and Mrs. Thomas A. Clark
Mr. 5.P. Clay Jr.
M. Lynn R. Coleman
Ms. Barbara Collins
Mr. Peter D. Conlon
Mr. James M. Copeland Jr.
Ms. Ellyn Corey
Mr. and Mrs. Donald H. Cowan
Mrs. Margaret S. Crowford
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Cringle
Mr. and Mrs. Michael A. Cronin
Col. and Mrs. Louis C. Crouch
Ms. Helen S. Curry
Mr. Phillippe Daniel
Mr. Alf Danzie
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. Darger
Ms. Alice K. Davis
Mr. ET. Davis Jr.
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Ms. Kathleen Day and
Mr. Bruce Gunter
Mr. David de Haan
Ms. Virginia A. De Lima
M:r. Steven A. Denning and
Ms. Roberta D. Bowman
Ms. Caroline M. Devine
Mr. James Dimon
Mr. David E. Dodge
Ms. Ann M. Downey
Mr. Marlan W. Downey
Mr. and Mrs. Mark W. Dundon
Mr. and Mrs. Lee P. Durham
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas F. Dutcher
Mr. Robert G. Edge
Mr. William D. Elfrink
Mr. George Ellioft Il
Mrs. Martha H. Ellis
Mr. and Mrs. Jack K. Ellison
Mrs. Walter B. Elsee
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Engelke
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J.
Ewersmann Jr.
Nola Maddox Falcone Charitable
Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce Falconer
Mr. Leonard L. Farber
Mr. and Mrs. William Ferguson
Ms., Vinette B. Finerman
Dr. and Mrs. Richard D. Finucane
First Presbyferian Church of
Minot, N.D.
Dr. and Mrs. Weldon C. Flint
Ms. Carol Tucker Foreman
Mr. AL Florence
Dr. William H. Foege
Mr. and Mrs. Jerome Forkosh
Ms. Jean Joicey Fox
AJ. Frank Family Foundation
Mr. Tom Freeman
The Rev. Frederick Frick and
Dr. Faye A. Frick
A. Friend
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Gagarin
Ms. Marie Lee Gaillard
Mrs. Luck F. Gambrell
Ms. Stephanie Garber and
Mr. David M. Collins
Mr. and Ms. Ronald Gibson
Mr. Thad Gibson
Mr. Ron Gifford
Mr. WB. Gillam
Mr. and Mrs. Martin Gilman
Mr. and Mrs. Hubert Gilmore
Ms. Terry Lynn Gilmore
Ms. Clevie E. Gladney
Dr. John Godersky and
Ms. Barbara Covey
Mr. Paul Goldenberg

Good Works Foundation
Mr. Kevin ). Gorman
Grimes Publications
M:r. and Mrs. Frank Grobman
The Gruber Foundation
Joanne and Peter Haas Jr. Fund
Ms. Alexis Hafken
M:r. Robert S. Hagge Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. Kenneth L. Haile Jr.
The W.B. Haley Foundation Inc.
Ms. Anne Cathcart Hall
Mr. and Mrs. Frank P. Hall 1lI
Mr. and Mrs. Claus M. Halle
Ms. Genis G. Hamilton
Mr. Edward ). Hardin
Dr. and Mrs. John B. Hardman
Harrison House
Harvest Wine & Spirits
Mr. C. Felix Harvey
Dr. Daniel F. Haskins and
Ms. M. Joyce Hughes
Mr. and Mrs. William L. Haskins
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Hatcher Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. George N. Hay
Mr. R. Douglas Hazen
The Hon. and Mrs. John W.
Hechinger Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W.
Henderson
Mr. and Mrs. R. Herb
Mr. B. Harvey Hill Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Floyd I. Hill
Mr. and Mrs. John L. Hill
Mrs. Wilma E. Hoffman
Ms. Caral J. Hogan
The Hon. Richard C. Holbrooke
Mr. John Holland
Mr. Robert Holmes
Mr. Carl E. Hostler and
Ms. Barbara T. Leonard
Ms. Lucille Howe
Dr. and Mrs. Jerry W. Howington
Mr. Donald H. Hubbs
Mr. and Mrs. Karl Hubner
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas L. Hudsen
Mr. John Huffstetler
Mrs. J. Gibson Hull
Ms. Ann Hampton Hunt
Mr. and Mrs. G. David Hurd
Mrs. Opal §. Huskey
Dr. and Mrs. Wallace N. Hyde
Mr. Jeff Ifland
International Union, UAW
Mes. Ellin M. Irwin
Dr. and Mrs. Terence Isakov
ITOCHU International
Mr. and Mrs. Darrin Jackson
Mrs. Jane B. Jackson
Ms. Diane S. Jacgmin

The Jelks Family Foundation
Dr. Michael L. Jesudason
Mr. and Mrs. Clinton L. Jewell Jr.
Mr. James V. Jirousek
Mr. Charles Johns
George H. Johnson Properties
Dr. Warford B. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Boisfeuillet Jones
Mr. Frank C. Jones
Dr. Wyatt C. Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Harold P. Jordan
Mr. and Mrs. William N. Joy
Mr. and Mrs. Zagloul Kadah
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Kanter
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Katz
Mr. Peter G. Kelly
Ms. Jane Kennedy and

Mr. Bruce Krawisz
Mrs. Collier C. Kimball
Mr. Charles Kimbrough
Mr. and Mrs. Philip Kind Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L.

Kirkpatrick
Ms. Katherine Kirmse
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Kitchin
Mr. Steven Kremm
Mr. Herbert Kunde
Mr. E.T. Laird
Mr. Peter Lamm
Mr. Byron L. Landau
Ms. Doris M. Langenau
Mr. and Mrs. ) B. Laseter
Mes. J. Bland Lawrence
Mr. Michael Lebowitz
Mr. and Mrs. Robert N. Lehrer
Mr. David O. leiwant
Dr. Lotte Leschly
Mr. Charles E. Letts Jr.
Ms. Eleanor N. Lewis
Mr. and Mrs. Kwok-leung Li
Ms. Clara Link
Mr. Wilbert Lick
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lithgow
Little, Brown, and Company
Ms. Wilma H. Logan
Mr. and Mrs. William F. Ludwig
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Luongo
Mr. and Mrs. Theodore C. Lutz
Mr. and Mrs. Ralph Lynch Jr.
Ms. Anne Marie Macari
Ms. Mary E. MacDonald
Ms. Nancy Fortner Mack
Mr. Bryan MacPherson
Maharashtra Foundation
Ms. Doris Malaspina
Ms. Marianne R. Maloney
Mr. and Mrs. Sam Maloof
Atlanta Marriott Marquis
The Hon. and Mrs. Ray Marshall

Mr. and Mrs. William L. Masterton
Mrs. Ralston Matheny
Mr. Oscar G. Mayer
Dr. Wallace D. Mays
Mr. and Mrs. William D. McAllister
Mr. and Mrs. Russell McCaughan
Ms. Creel C. McCormack
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald McCurdy
Mr. and Mrs. Alonzo L.
McDonald Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. W.J. McFadden
Mr. and Mrs. James M. McKinney
Mr. and Mrs. Charles L. Mclafferty
Mr. and Mrs. Hugh J. Mclellan
The Mead Corporation Foundation
Mediterranean Affairs
Mr. and Mrs. George A. Menendez
Meridian Beverage Company
Col. Virginia Metcalf and
Col. Mary H. Yeakel
The Ruth and Peter Metz Family
Foundation
Mr. David Michaelson
Microsoft Corporation
Mr. and Mrs. Victor A. Milewski
Ms. Sharon Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Virgil L. Miller
Mr. and Mrs, Clyde E. Millington
Mr. and Mrs. Elmer Million
Dr. and Mrs. Masakazu Miyagi
Mr. and Mrs. Frank Moore
Ms. Judith Moore
Mr. and Mrs. Hart Morris
The Hon. Alfred H. Moses
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Mount
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth F.
Mountcastle Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Albert Muisenga
Mrs. Muriel M. Mullenbach
Ms. Justine S. Mullet
Mr. Rafael R. Muniz
Mr. and Mrs. Nordan C. Murphy
Mr. Linwood A. Murray
Ms. Thelma J. Muzik
Mrs. Daisy B. Nelson
Mr. Kent C. Nelson
M:r. S. Craig Nelson
Mr. Scott Nesbitt
Ms. Elma L. Newgen
Mr. and Mrs. L. Michael Newman
Mr. James Nichols
Dr. Michel Oksenberg
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Oliaro
M:s. Jennie M. Olson
M:r. Diego Orlanski
Ms. Kay D. O'Rourke
M:s. Ruth Paddison
Mr. R.B. Pamplin
Ms. Diana J. Park
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Dr. Tae K. Park

Mr. Joseph W. Parker

M. and Mrs. Thomas J. Parry

Ms. Helen T. Pease

M. John W. Peifer and
Dr. Deborah S. lee

Dr. Judy Pemberton and
Dr. Bruce Pemberton

Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Perez

Mr. and Mrs. Godfrey Perrott

Mr. Frank L. Perry

Mr. Curtis Peterson and Ms. Lea
Stublarec

Ms. Molly Peterson

Mr. and Mrs. John R. Phillips

Piersol Foundation

Mr. Richard N. Poe

Mr. John Pomeroy

Mr. and Mrs. Joseph L. Powell Jr.

Mr. and Mrs. Gerald M.
Rafshoon

Mr. and Mrs. William L. Raney

Ms. Helen G. Ranney

Mr. and Mrs. William T. Ratliff Jr.

Mr. and Mrs. Robert L.
Rearden Jr.

Mr. Daniel Reiber

Dr. and Mrs. Charles Reith

Mr. and Mrs. William Revelle

Mr. and Mrs. Howard O. Reynolds

Mr. and Mrs. Maurice A. Rice

Mr. David A. Richardson

Mr. and Mrs. Richard K. Riess

Mr. Thomas R. Riley

Dr. Jane Ann Roberts

Ms. Alice L. Robertson

M. Robert C. Robinson

Ms. Karol K. Rodriguez

Mr. and Mrs. Victor Roepke

The Gary W. and Ruth M. Rellins
Family Foundation

Mr. Harold Rosen

Mr. and Mrs. Gerald A. Rosenthal

M:r. John Ruan/John Ruan
Foundation Trust

Ms. Mary Ruddiman

Mr. Alvin Ruml

Mr. Albert H. Rusher

Mr. and Mrs. George Rust

Mr. and Mrs. Peter Saltz

M:s. Virginia D. Samplawski

Mr. Myron L. Sandberg and
Marva J. Dawn

Mr. and Mrs. Edward Sanders

Mrs. Leonard R. Sargent

Mr. and Mrs. Nathan M. Sarkisian

Mr. and Mrs. Maynard Sauder

Mr. and Mrs. Myrl Sauder

Ms. Marjorie Sauvers

Mr. Stanley Sawyer
Ms. Nancy G. Schaub
Mrs. Elizabeth B. Schley
Mr. and Mrs. Lannie D. Schmidt
Ms. Margaret M. Schrader
Mrs. Leslie Schrag
Mr. and Mrs. Waldo E. Schroeter
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Schule
Ms. Marcy Scott
Mr. and Mrs. Robert S. Scoit
Securitec Corporation
The Selig Foundation
Sheffield Charitable Trust
Sidney Sheldon Foundation
Ms. Carloyn J. Shields
Mr. Joseph A. Shepard
Mr. Ralph Shepherd
Ms. Thelma Sherertz
Mr. Frank M. Sheridan and
Ms. Paula R. Marmont
Mr. and Mrs. Sudheer Shirali
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Simanton
M. Douglas Simao
Sisters of Saint Joseph of Wheeling
Mr. and Mrs, Murali Sivarajan
Mr. and Mrs. Alan B. Slifka
Ms. Alicia W. Smith
Ms. Cherida C. Smith
Ms. Eleanor Anshin Smith
Mr. George D. Smith
Ms. Janet E. Smith
Mr. Julian Smith
M. and Mrs. Layton F. Smith
Mr. Louis C. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Sorrell
Southern Center for Human Rights
Southwire Company
Ms. Margaret ). Spencer and
Ms. Pat Lahti
Mrs. Eleanor Spilman
Mr. and Mrs. James N. Stanard
Mr. Thomas O. Stanley
Mr. and Mrs. Ken Stopp
Mr. Ted Stefanik and
Ms. Diana L. Gill
Mr. and Mrs. Gordon C. Stewart
M:r. Frank Stiebel
M. Robert D. Stillman
Mr. Terrance D. Straub
Estate of Helen I. Strickland
Mr. and Mrs. William C. Sttt
Drs. litendra and lla Sukhadia
Mr. and Mrs. Paul D. Sullivan
Mr. Louis J. Taratoot
Mr. Mark E. Taylor
Lelia L. Teague Trust
Mr. John M.P. Thatcher Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Edward O. Tilford
Mr. and Mrs. Clayton M. Timmons

Mr. William C. Tomson

Mr. and Mrs. Gordon M.
Torgersen

Mr. Charles |. Trainer

Mr. and Mrs. LeRoy S. Troyer

Ms. leanne M. Ulvang

United Way of Metropolitan
Aflanta

Mrs. Jane Van Denend

Dr. Judith Elaine Wade

Mr. and Mrs. Deodatt A. Wadke

Ms. Margaret M. Wagner

Mrs. Marcia D. Walden

Mr. and Mrs. Friedrich Walther

Mr. and Mrs. Jack H. Ward

Mr. and Mrs. Don W, Warren

Ms. Ruth Warrick

Waste Management

Mr. and Mrs. Jack H. Watson Jr.

Dr. and Mrs. J. Dix Wayman

Mr. and Mrs. James L. Wells

Ms. Willy Werby

Mr. and Mrs. Herbert West

Mr. and Mrs. Michael Weston

The Westport Fund

Ms. Winifred E. Weter

Mr. William S. White

The Rev. Lawrence K. Whitfield

Mr. Charles B. Whitman

Dr. and Mrs. David A. Wiebe

Mr. and Mrs. L. Neil Williams Jr.

Ms. Bertha B. Wiseman

The Hon. Milton A. Wolf

Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Wolfe

Mr. Alan S. Wood

Ms. Helen Woad

Mr. Frank Woods I

Mrs. V. Rex Woods

Mr. William Woodside

Mr. and Mrs. J. Allen Woodward

World Health Organization

Ms. Adeline Wuslich

Mr. Stephen P. Yokich

Mr. and Mrs. A. Lee Zeigler

Mr. Homer G. Zimmerman Jr.

Founders

The Carter Center and The Jimmy
Carter Library were built in large
measure thanks to the early

leadership and financial support of

The Carter Center Founders.

Agha Hasan Abedi
lvan Allen Il

Dwayne O. Andreas
Arthur and Diana Blank
Richard C. Blum

W. Michael Blumenthal

Edgar M. Bronfman

James C. and Connie Calaway

Mr. and Mrs. Michael C. Carlos

Anne Cox Chambers

Warren Christopher

Dominique de Menil

Charles W. Duncan Jr.

His Maijesty King Fahd of
Saudi Arabia

1.B. Fuqua

Roberto C. Goizueta

Walter and Elise Haas

Armand Hammer

Sidney Harman and
Jane Frank Harman

Gov. and Mrs. W. Averell
Herriman

Jess Hay

Christopher B. and Patricia K.
Hemmeter

Philip M. and Ethel Klutznick

Mathilde and Arthur Krim

George P. Livanos

Fraydun Manocherian

G. William Miller

Guy W. Millner

George P. and Cynthia Mitchell

Set Charles Momijian

David Packard

George and Thelma
Paraskevaides

Allen E. Paulson

Lamar and Frances Plunkett

John and Betty Pope

James D. Robinson Il

Hasib J. Sabbagh

Ryoichi Sasakawa

Walter H. and Phyllis J.
Shorenstein

Deen Day Smith

Richard R. Swann

R.E. “Ted” Turner

Robert and Ann Utley

Edie and Lew Wasserman

Thomas J. Watson Jr.

Milton A. Wolf

Robert W. Woodruff

Tadao Yoshida

Erwin E. Zaban

Volunteers

Approximorely 120 volunteers
donated 12,000 hours of service
in 199697 Their energy and
devotion help The Carter Center
achieve much more with the
resources it receives from its
financial contributors. We thank
our volunteers for their support.
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The Carter Center
Board of Trustees

The Carter Cenfer is governed by
the Board of Trustees, Chaired by
President Carter, with Mrs. Carter
as vice chair, the Board oversees
the Center’s assets and property
and promotes its objectives and
goals. Members include:

Jimmy Carter
Chair

Rosalynn Carter
Vice Chair

Terrence Adamson
Senior Vice President
National Geographic Society

Arthur Blank
President and COO
The Home Depot

Michael Carlos
President and CEO
National Distributing Company

William Chace
President
Emory University

Johnnetta Cole
Former President
Spelman College

Robert Edge
Partner
Alston & Bird

Jane Fonda
Actress, Producer, and
Entrepreneur

Claus Halle
International Consultant
to The Coca-Cola Company

David Hamburg
President Emeritus
Carnegie Corporation of
New York

Sidney Harman
Chair of the Board and CEO

Harman International Industries

Conley Ingram
Senior Partner
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The Carter Center
Combined Financial Statements and Schedule
as of Aug. 31, 1997 and 1996

Together With Accountants’ Review Report

Report of Independent Public Accountants

To the Board of Trustees of The Carter Center:

e have reviewed the accompanying combined statements of financial position of THE CARTER CENTER (an

entity comprised of The Carter Center Inc. and The Carter Center of Emory University, a division of Emory

University) as of Aug. 31, 1997 and 1996 and the related combined statements of activities and cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. All information included in these financial statements is the
representation of management of the combined entities.

A review consists principally of inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data. It
is substantially less in scope than an audir in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the objective of
which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements
referred to above in order for them to be in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

MMAAJMM kkP

Atlanta, Georgia

Nowv. 7, 1997




THE CARTER CENTER
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AUG. 31, 1997 AND 1996

ASSETS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
including restricted cash of $9,829,342 and $3,954,191
in 1997 and 1996, respectively

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

Due from federal funding agencies

Other

Related party

PLEDGES RECEIVABLE
GRANTS RECEIVABLE
INVENTORY

PREPAID RENT

RESTRICTED ENDOWMENT INVESTMENTS, at market
RESTRICTED INVESTMENT IN OFFICE BUILDING,

at cost, less accumulated depreciation of $268,464 and

$232,574 in 1997 and 1996, respectively
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT,

at cost or fair marker value at date of gift (Note 4)
ARTWORK
PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 9)
NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted:
Designated by the Board of Trustees for maintenance
of property and equipment
Designated by management as an addition to
endowment investments
Unrealized gain on restricted endowment investments
Undesignated
Total unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

The accompanying accountants’ review report, notes to financial statements, and Schedule 1 should be read in conjunction

with these combined statements.

1997

$ 13,389,938

1,670,938
92,428
23,130

1,786,496

7,408,857

5.535
5,116,451
220,921
98,140,712

988,036

14,763,675
1,047,750
343,376
$138,841,747

1997

$ 1,119,303

535,335

8,205,243
47,604,713
23,980,410
80,325,701
13,895,216
43,501,527

137,722,444

$138,841,747

1996

$ 11,180,106

1,220,856
101,752
18,196
1,340,804

9,841,442
196,270
1,735,877
441,844
74,744,607

1,017,281

15,564,504
971,150
214,147

$117,248,032

1996

$ 1,512917

477,204

4 467,219
36,292,030
24,007,304
65,243,757

7,826,814
42,664,544

T15.735.115
$117,248,032




THE CARTER CENTER
COMBINED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUG. 31, 1997

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
REVENUES AND SUPPORT:
Contributions:
Operating $ 8,566,681 $ 58,450 $ 0 $ 8,625,131
Programs:
PARC—international 0 4,435,013 0 4,435,013
CED 0 9,901,953 0 9,901,953
PARC—domestic 0 4.048,851 0 4,048,851
Cross-program 0 528,924 0 528,924
In-kind goods and services:
CED 0 27,543,106 0 27,543,106
PARC—domestic 0 594232 0 594,232
Construction 0 19,546 0 19,546
Endowment 0 0 872,873 872,873

8,566,681

47,130,075

872,873

56,569,629

Endowment fund earnings 2,141,320 0 0 2,141,320
Appreciation of restricted 11,312,863 0 Q 11,312,863
endowment investments
Depreciation of office building 0 0 (35,890) (35,890)
Facilities use income 444 461 0 0 444 461
Interest and investment income 515,868 12,734 0 528,602
Nert assets released from restrictions:
PARC—international 3,448,389 (3,448,389) 0 0
CED 34,677,503 (34,677,503) 0 0
PARC—domestic 2,679,174 (2,679,174) 0 0
Cross-program 191,345 (191,345) 0 0
Construction 19,546 (19,546) 0 0
Operating 58,450 (58,450) 0 0
Total revenues and support 64,055,600 6,068,402 836,983 70,960,985
EXPENSES:
Program:
PARC—international 3,384,137 0 0 3,384,137
CED 33,856,229 0 0 33,856,229
PARC—domestic 2,615,363 0 0 2,615,363
Cross-program 473,435 0 0 473,435
Fund-raising office 3,360,518 0 0 3,360,518
Endowment campaign 220,302 0 0 220,302
Communications and publications office 409,540 0 0 409,540
Events office 160,401 0 0 260,401
General and administrative 2,074,810 0 0 2,074,810
Legal and accounting 143,068 0 0 143,068
Common area 1,109,589 0 0 1,109,589
Depreciation 1,066,264 0 0 1,066,264
Total expenses 48,973,656 0 0 48,973,656
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 15,081,944 6,068,402 836,983 21,987,329
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 65,243,757 7,826,814 41,664,544 115,735,115
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $80,325,701 $13,895,216 $43,501,527 $137,722,444

The accompanying accountants’ review report, notes to financial statements, and Schedule I should be read in

conjunction with this combined statement.




THE CARTER CENTER
COMBINED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUG. 31, 1996

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
REVENUES AND SUPPORT:
Contributions: $ 8,337,797 $ 407,330 $ 0 $ 8,745,127
Operating
Programs:
PARC—international 0 2,289,019 0 2,289,019
CED 0 4,253,005 0 4,253,005
PARC—domestic 0 2,457,081 0 2,457,081
Cross-program 0 660,828 0 660,828
In-kind goods and services:
PARC—international 0 120,175 0 120,175
CED 0 5,159,797 0 5,159,797
PARC—domestic 0 2,296,044 0 2,296,044
Cross-program 0 0 0 0
Construction 0 58,315 0 58,315
Endowment 0 0 587,518 587,518
8,337,797 17,701,594 587,518 26,626,909
Endowment fund earnings 1,837,177 0 0 1,837,177
Appreciation of restricted 18,165,637 0 0 18,165,637
endowment investments
Depreciation of office building 0 0 (35,890) (35,890)
Facilities use income 291,265 0 0 291,265
Interest and investment income 289,444 53,346 0 342,790
Net assets released from restrictions:
PARC—international 4,543,843 (4,543,843) 0 0
CED 16,125,698 (16,125,698) 0 0
PARC—domestic 8,848,648 (8,848,648) 0 0
Cross-program 184,574 (184,574) 0 0
Construction 58,315 (58,315) 0 0
Operating 407,330 (407,330) 0 0
Total revenues and support 59,089,728 (12,413,468) 551,628 47,227,888
EXPENSES:
Program:
PARC—international 3,594,197 0 0 3,594,197
CED 15,196,054 0 0 15,196,054
PARC—domestic 8,281,720 0 0 8,281,720
Cross-program 1,393,692 0 0 1,393,692
Fund-raising office 3,331,918 0 0 3,331,918
Endowment campaign 237,998 0 0 237,998
Communications and publications office 486,368 0 0 486,368
Events office 289,568 0 0 289,568
General and administrative 1,997,778 0 0 1,997,778
Legal and accounting 239,511 0 0 239,511
Common area 1,366,380 0 0 1,366,380
Depreciation 1,068,575 0 0 1,068,575
Total expenses 37,483,759 0 0 37,483,759
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 21,605,969 (12,413,468) 551,628 9,744,129
ACQUISITION OF RIVER 0 7,458,895 0 7,458,895
BLINDNESS FOUNDATION (Note 8)
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 43,637,788 12,781,387 42,112,916 98,532,091
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $65,243,757 $ 7.826,814 $42,664,544  $115,735,115

The accompanying accountants’ review report, notes to financial statements, and Schedule 1 should be read in

conjunction with this combined statement.




THE CARTER CENTER
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUG. 31, 1997 AND 1996

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Donated inventory
Increase in fair market value of endowment investments
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable
PlL\if_‘(?* rec L'I\‘JHL'
Prepaid rent
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Artwork
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Grants payable
Contributions restricted for investment
Toral adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Construction and purchase of property and equipment,
net of related payables
Endowment investments
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from contributions restricted for:
Investment in endowment
Investment in plant
Net cash provided by financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

The accompanying accountants’ review report, notes to financial statements, and Schedule [ should be read in

conjunction with these combined statements.

1997

$21,987,329

1,615,902
(3,380,574)
(11,312,863)
(445,692)
190,735
2,432,585
220,923
(129,229)
(76,600)
(393,614)

O
(2,940,622)
(14,219,049)
7,768,280

(785,828)

(7,713,242)
(8,499,070)

2,820,623
119,999
2,940,622

2,209,832

11,180,106

$13,389,938

1996

$17,203,024

2,045,528
(1,735,877)
(18,165,637)

1,129,744
(79,828)
7,173,092
220,923
33,597
(156,300)
(590,556)
(14,208)
(4,577,059)
(14,716,581)

2,486,443

(1,313,006)

(5,669,131)

4.232.359
344,700
4,577,059

1,394,371

\]‘Th

——
e

|

$11,180,106



THE CARTER CENTER
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULE
AUG. 31, 1997 AND 1996

1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION

The Carter Center (“CC") is comprised of The Carter
Center Inc. (*CCI”) and The Carter Center of Emory
University (“CCEU”), a division of Emory University.
Both entities are exempt from federal income taxation
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. A
separate financial statement audit is performed annually for
hoth CCI and Emory University.

The Carter Center Inc.

Carter Presidenrial Library Inc. (“CPL”) was organized
Oct. 26, 1981, under the laws of Georgia as a nonprofit
corporation to be operated exclusively for charitable and
educational purposes. During 1986, CPL changed its name
to Carter Presidential Center Inc. (“CPC"). Effective
January 1988, CPC changed its name to The Carter
Center Inc.

CCI operates programmatically under three main action
areas: prevention and resolution of conflict (“PARC"),
both domestic and international, and control and
eradication of disease (“CED"). In addition, CCI has
received broad-based support which is beneficial to all
programs and is categorized as “cross-program.”

Initiatives in PARC-international include preventing
and resolving conflict, protecting basic human rights,
promoting open forms of media, and monitoring elections
in emerging democracies. The CED area strives to
improve health in the United States and around the world.
Initiatives include eradication of dracunculiasis, control of
onchocerciasis, mental health reform, collaborations
between congregations and public health agencies, and
collaborations among community groups to reduce firearm
violence. The PARC-domestic area focuses effort on
helping the city of Atlanta’s neediest communities gain
access to the resources they need to address the problems
that most concern them. Experiences are then comm-
unicated to other interested communities throughout the
country.

The Carter Center of Emory University

CCEU, which is housed at The Carter Center, is a
department of Emory University. It was formed on Sept. 1,
1982, to identify and address selected international and
domestic public policy issues through nonpartisan study,
research, activities, conferences, and publications. These
selected international and domestic issues are organized in
the same action areas as programs at CCI.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND OTHER MATTERS
Contributions

CC records gifts, including unconditional promises to
give, of cash and other assets as restricted support if they

are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of
the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and are reported in the combined
statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

CC records gifts of land, buildings, and equipment as
unrestricted support unless explicit donor stipulations
specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-
lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the
assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that
must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as
restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations
about how long those long-lived assets must be
maintained, CC reports expirations of donor restrictions
when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed
in service.

Donated Goods and Services

Donated materials and equipment, including artwork,
are reflected as contributions at their estimated fair market
values when an unconditional promise to give has been
received. Donated services are reflected as contributions if
the following criteria are met: the services received or to
be received create or enhance nonfinancial assets or the
services require specialized skills, are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would need to be
purchased if not provided by donation. Donated services
are recognized as the services are performed.

The services of loaned executives for The Atlanta
Project (“TAP") and certain other services have been
recorded in the accompanying financial statements. No
amounts are recorded in the accompanying financial
statements for other donated services (volunteers,
organizational planning, and meeting facilitation), since
the criteria discussed above were not met with respect to
these services.

The components of donated goods and services for the
years ended Aug. 31, 1997 and 1996 are as follows:

1997 1996

PARC—international:

Transportation $ 0 $ 120,175
CED:

Water filtration material 1,002,106 1,721,797

and chemicals

Mectizan tablets 26,541,000 3,438,000
PARC—domestic:

Loaned executives 454,074 1,837,685
Operating expenses and utilities:

Headquarters 140,158 92,134

Clusters 0 366,225
Total $28,137,338 $7,576,016




Artwork
CC has capitalized artwork since its inception at the
estimated fair market value at the date of acquisition.

Inventory

Inventory consists of Mectizan tablets, which are used to
treat onchocerciasis (“river blindness™). Inventory with a
value of $3,805,947 was acquired in fiscal year 1996 in
conjuncrion with the River Blindness Foundation (“RBF”)
asset acquisition (Note 8). Additional inventory has been
received as an in-kind donation and is valued at marker
value at the time of the gift. Inventory is valued using the
first-in, first-out method of accounting.

Net Assets

Unrestricted
The Board of Trustees of CC has authorized the
designation of a portion of the unrestricted net assets for
maintenance of property and equipment. The annual
designation amount is currently $116,000.

Included in unrestricted net assets at Aug. 31, 1997 and
1996 are $8,205,243 and $4,467,219 respectively, of surplus
operating funds which have been designated by CC's
management as endowment funds.

Unrestricted net assets at Aug. 31, 1997 and 1996 also
include $47,604,713 and $36,292,030, respectively, of
unrealized gains on restricted endowment investments.
These gains are classified as increases in unrestricted net
assets due to the lack of explicit donor stipulations which
would temporarily or permanently restrict their use.

Temporarily Restricted
Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the
following purposes for the years ended Aug. 31, 1997 and
1996:

PARC—international
CED

PAR( f—dmnvsric
Cross-program

Total

1997 1996
$ 1,884,656 $ B87.255
4,292,888 1,523,375
6,259911 4,296,002
1,457,761 1,120,182
$13,895.216 $7,826,814

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CC’s cash equivalents represent highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or
less. Restricted cash includes cash restricted by the donor
for a specific purpose.

Principles of Combination

The combined financial statements include the
accounts of CC. All significant intercompany transactions
have been eliminated.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

3. PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

During the year ended Aug. 31, 1996, CC retroactively
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 116, “Accounting for Contributions
Received and Contributions Made.” On the statements of
financial position, pledges receivable represent
unconditional promises of donors to give to CC in future
years. SFAS No. 116 requires that revenue be recognized
for each pledge when the promise to give is made by the
donor. Pledges are recorded as of their pledge date at the
net present value of their estimated future cash flows. The
amount of periodic amortization of the discount is recorded
in subsequent periods as contribution income according to
each respective donor-imposed restriction, if any. Pledges
receivable as of Aug. 31, 1997 and 1996 are classified as
follows:

Permanently Restricted

The principal of permanently restricted net assets is
restricted to investment in perpetuity. The income from
these endowments is expendable to support the acrivities

of CC.

Restricted Investment in Office Building

CCI purchased an office building with endowment funds
during 1990. During the years ended Aug. 31, 1997 and
1996, approximately $6,600 and $2,500, respectively, of
endowment funds were invested in additional building
improvements. As of Aug. 31, 1997, the building was
wholly occupied by CCl program and department staff.

1997 1996
Unrestricted:
Operating $ 490,872 $ 0
Quasi-endowment 390,476 571,882
Temporarily restricted:
CED 0 220,199
PARC—domestic 2,227,346 2,904,166
Construction 530,000 630,453
Permanently restricted:
Endowment 3,770,163 5,514,742
Total $7,408,857 $9.841,442




The anticipated receipts of these receivables as of Aug. 31,
1997 and 1996 were as follows:

1997 1996
Less than one year $2,893,333 $3,727,699
One to five years 1,633,333 1,760,000
Five to ten years 4,274,095 6,617,845
Less unamortized discount (1,391,904) (2,264,102)
$7,408,857 $9.841,442

4. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
The components of property, plant, and equipment which,
except for land, are depreciated on a straight-line basis, are

as follows at Aug. 31, 1997 and 1996:

1997 1996 Useful
Lives
Land $ 296,732 $ 296,732 NJA
Buildings 15,581,171 15,581,171 30 years
Grounds and land 1,542,750 1,501,705 10 years
improvements
Furniture and fixtures 1,564,809 1,471,053 5-10 years
Office equipment 1,913,964 1,656,599 5 years
Computer equipment 725,454 474,316 3to5
years
TAP equipment 2,838495 2,838,495 3 years
Building 461,444 452,088 15 years
improvements
Vehicles 1,441,882 1,381,140 3 years
26,366,701 25,653,299

(11,603,026) (10,088,795)

Less accumulated
depreciation

$14,763,675 $15,564,504

Non-U.S. property and equipment used in field programs,
except for automobiles, have been expensed in the period
purchased.

5. INVESTMENTS

During the year ended Aug. 31, 1996, CC retroactively
adopted SFAS No. 124, “Accounting for Certain Invest-
ments Held by Not-for-Profit Organizations.” SFAS No.
124 requires investments in equity securities with readily
determinable fair values and all debt securities to be
reported at their fair values. The fair values are estimared
based on the current market values.

CC has invested a portion of its endowment in a pooled
investment fund which invests in a composite of cash
equivalents, bonds, common stock, mutual funds, and
other assets. These investments are presented in the
accompanying statements of financial position at their fair
values. The cost basis for these investments was
$46,163,755 and $38,447,042 as of Aug. 31, 1997 and
1996, respectively.

Total return on investments was as follows for the years
ended Aug. 31, 1997 and 1996:
1997
Investment income, including $2,141,320
net realized gains or losses
Net unrealized gains
Total return on investments

1996
$ 1,837,177

11,312,863
$13,454,183

18,165,637
$20,002,314

Total return on investments was unrestricted for the years

ended Aug. 31, 1997 and 1996.
6. LEASES

CC leases space to various entities under noncancelable
leases with various terms. A business agreement with CC's
caterer has no annual rent; rather, CC receives 5 percent to
10 percent of the tenant’s gross revenues, as defined. Rental
income from these leases is included in facilities use income
in the accompanying statements of activities.

7. THE ATLANTA PROJECT
HEADQUARTERS LEASE

CC leases space for TAP headquarters under an
agreement with an initial term of two years, which
commenced May 1, 1992, and two renewal terms of two
years each. CC is not obligated to pay any base rents during
the initial or renewal terms of the lease, as CC expended
more than $500,000 toward leasehold improvements. The
space leased by CC was provided as is, and all leasehold
improvements funded by CC become a part of the lessor’s
property. The value of the contributed space is not reflected
in the accompanying financial statements, since it is not
susceptible to objective measurement or valuation.

The lessor provides all utilities and pays for operating
expenses, except insurance, and CC reimburses the lessor a
stipulared amount per square foot. If CC’s reimbursement is
less than the lessor’s cost of providing such operating
expenses and utilities, the unreimbursed amount is reflecred
as donated operating and urilities expense.

CC did not expend any funds toward leasehold
improvements during the years ended Aug. 31, 1997 and
1996. In prior years, such amounts have been included in
prepaid rent in the accompanying statements of financial
position. Leasehold improvements include the estimated
fair value of any donated goods and services relating to
leasehold improvements and an estimated value of
contributed profit resulting from the contractor’s providing
services at cost. This profit has been valued based on
comparable profit margins charged in the industry.

Prepaid rent is being amortized over the entire term of
the lease, assuming both renewal oprions are exercised,
commencing with the date the space was occupied. Rent
expense for this space was approximately $221,000 during
each of the years ended Aug. 31, 1997 and 1996.




8. RIVER BLINDNESS FOUNDATION

On May 1, 1996, CC acquired RBF, which works to
control river blindness in areas of Africa and Latin
America. The results of RBF's operations have been
combined with those of CC since the date of acquisition,
The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. Because there was no exchange of
consideration, no goodwill was recorded. The fair value of
assets acquired was $7,458,895 and was credited directly to

Nnet assers.

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lit igation and claims have been !Ilu] agamst \ Cin rl'u‘
ordinary course of business. While the outcome of these
actions is not presently determinable, management
believes that the IWI'lll‘il]‘l\' resolution of such
contingencies will not materially affect the financial
position or results of operations of CC.



10. SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The following schedules reflect the components of CC’s program and supporting expenses by their natural classification:

Salaries
Consulting
Computer services
Communications
Orher services
Supplies
Equipment/books
Travel/meetings
Orther

Grants

Salaries
Consulting
Computer services
Communications
Other services
Supplies
Equipment/books
Travel/meetings
Other

Grants

Program Expenses Supporting Expenses Total
PARC PARC Cross- Fund- General and Common Area Expenses
—international CED —domestic Program Raising  Administrative _and Depreciation 1997
$1,428,014 $ 3,475,383 276,225 $ 312,761 $ 909,488 $1,936,749 $ 635412 $ 9,974,032
329,977 826,202 328,764 0 233,030 306,436 2,029,437
34,680 51,497 1,623 8,918 247,746 6,658 401,122
318,385 524,944 71,283 14,661 1,215,352 261,531 2,418,012
129,204 29,540 28,417 13,778 597,660 70,197 1,066,960
64,781 23,496,970 38,951 3522 19,431 49,576 23,713,967
80,939 564,152 11,572 193 6,247 2,806 669,821
948,157 1,417,158 84,983 9,515 226,178 63,369 2,754,495
0 1,056,098 365,143 110,087 125,688 190,497 3,123,123
0 2,414,285 408,402 0 0 0 2,822,687
$3384137  $33.856229  S2615363  $ 473435 $3.580820  S188TS10  SL175853  $48.973.656
Program Expenses Supporting Expenses Total
PARC PARC Cross- Fund- General and Common Area Expenses
—international CED —domestic Program Raising ~ Administrative _and Depreciation 1996
$1,072,869 $ 2,998,200 075,924 51,241,434 $ 890,679 $1,874,906 $13,968,422
679,197 753,721 773,864 35,632 98,059 475,510 2,874,390
2,623 810 62,515 Pl 220,422 12,055 299,378
200,512 293,334 243,353 31,323 1,369,777 279,132 2,441,373
111,728 38,186 119,898 14,654 581,140 79,927 1,162,134
89,283 7,992,947 82,902 18,917 26,479 67,785 8,337,801
9,208 486,499 14,000 0 8,664 0 526,804
1,392,742 1,200,632 193,636 12,747 264,748 75,635 3,146,533
36,035 1,076,807 1,321,315 32,758 109,948 148,275 3,977,693
0 354,918 394313 0 0 0 749,231
$3,594,197 $15,196,054 $8,281,720 $1,393,692 $3,569,916 $3,013,225 $2,434,955 $37,483,759




THE CARTER CENTER
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

including restricted cash of $9,781,227

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

$ 11,868,785

AUG. 31, 1997

Schedule 1
CccC1 CCEU

Eliminations Total

$1,521,153 $ 0 $ 13,380,038

1,670,938
92,428
229,498
1,992 864

Due from federal funding agencies
Orther
Related parties

0
0
(206,368)

(206,368)

1,670,938
92,428
23,130
1,786,496

PLEDGES RECEIVABLE ___ 1,053,776 355,081 0 7,408,857
GRANTS RECEIVABLE 0 5,535 0 5,535
INVENTORY 5,116,451 0 0 5,116,451
PREPAID RENT 220,921 0 0 220,921
RESTRICTED ENDOWMENT 86,244,529 7,526,183 0 93,770,712
INVESTMENTS, at market o
RESTRICTED INVESTMENT IN OFFICE 988,036 0 0 088,036
BUILDING, at cost, less accumulated
depreciation of $268,464
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT, 14,749,680 13,995 0 14,763,675
at cost or fair market value at date of gift
ARTWORK 1,047,750 0 0 1,047,750
PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS 343,376 0 0 343,376
$129,626,168 $9.421,947 $(206,368) $138,841,747
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES:
Operating $ 1,124,768 $  (5,465) $ 0 $ 1,119,303
Related party 0 206,368 (206,368) 0
1,124,768 200,903 (206368) 1,119,303
NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted:
Designated by the Board of Trustees for
maintenance of property and equipment 535,335 0 0 535,335
Designated by management as an addition to
endowment investments 7,908,513 296,730 0 8,205,243
Unrealized appreciation on restricted
endowment investments 42,778,085 4,826,628 0 47,604,713
Undesignared 22,838,083 1,142,327 0 23,980,410
Total unrestricted 74,060,016 6,265,685 0 80,325,701
Temporarily restricted 13,850,180 45,036 0 13,895,216
Permanently restricted 40,591,204 2,910,323 0 43,501,527
Total net assets 28,5 00 9.221.044 0 137,722 444
$129.626,168 $9.421,947 $(206,368) $138,841,747

The accompanying accountants’ review report and notes to financial statements should be read in conjunction with this

L‘l\lﬂhlﬂl]l.l_[ statement.
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